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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (including exhibits and information incorporated by reference herein) contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. The statements contained in this report that are not purely historical are
forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including
statements regarding our expectations, beliefs, intentions or strategies for the future. All forward-looking statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K (including exhibits and information incorporated by reference herein) are based on information
available to us on the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update any such forward-looking statements. Events and actual
results could differ materially from those described in our forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such
differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed below in Item 7 of this report (“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations™) under the heading “CERTAIN RISK FACTORS” and those described in our previous
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date that they were made. We undertake no obligation to publicly release any revisions to these
forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events. '

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to “Net Perceptions,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Net
Perceptions, Inc. and, if so indicated or the context so requires, includes our wholly owned subsidiary Knowledge Discovery One, Inc.
(which we refer to in this report as “KD1”), prior to its merger with and into the Company on September 9, 2003.

PARTI
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Summary

Net Perceptions was ncorporated in Delaware in 1996 and our initial product was shipped in January 1997. Our principal
executive offices are located at 7700 France Avenue South, Edina, Minnesota 55435. Our Web site address is
www.netperceptions.com. The information on our Web site is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K
and should not be considered a part of this report.

We have sustained losses on a quarterly and annual basis since inception. As of December 31, 2003, we had an accumulated deficit
of $222 million. Our net loss was $5.3 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, compared to a net loss of $16.7
million in the same period of the prior year. These losses resulted from costs incurred in the development and marketing of our
products and services, significant costs incurred related to restructuring activities, significant costs for outside professional services
related to the exploration of various strategic alternatives for the Company and responding to an unsolicited exchange offer by
Obsidian Enterprises, Inc. which has since been withdrawn, as well as a decline in our revenues since the third quarter of 2000.

On October 21, 2003, the Company announced that our board of directors had unanimously approved a Plan of Complete
Liquidation and Dissolution, referred to as the plan of liquidation. The plan of liquidation was submitted to the Company’s
stockholders for approval and adoption at a special meeting of stockholders originally scheduled for March 12, 2004, which was
adjourned and was reconvened on March 23, 2004. At the reconvened special meeting, the proposal to approve and adopt the plan of
liquidation did not receive the affirmative vote of a majority of the total number of shares of common stock outstanding as of the
record date for the special meeting required to approve the proposal.

We have now substantially curtailed our operations. We anticipate that our board of directors will continue to review and consider
possible actions or transactions which might be available to resolve the Company’s future in the near term in the best interest of all
stockholders. These could include, among other actions or transactions, further sales or licenses of assets, an acquisition of or
investment in the Company or other extraordinary transaction, adopting a new plan of complete liquidation and dissolution and
seeking stockholder approval therefor, and/or changes in the composition of our board of directors.

Background

We developed and marketed software solutions designed to enable our customers to interact more intelligently with their
customers. Our solutions integrated and analyzed information about customers, products and transaction activity to generate specific




actions our customers could take to improve their marketing, selling, and merchandising effectiveness. We combined our sofiware
products with industry expertise and professional services to create industry-specific solutions that were designed to integrate with and
add value to existing custom or purchased systems, including customer relationship management, or CRM, systems and processes.

Our software solutions extracted data from our customers’ existing business applications, including electronic commerce, call
center, campaign management, merchandise management, enterprise resource planning and point-of-sale systems. Sophisticated and
proprietary analytical and reporting techniques then generated intelligence about customers and products that could be inserted into
operational processes and systems to drive actions such as cross-selling and up-selling or personalized promotions. Our software
solutions were particularly well suited to environments with large numbers of customers, a large product assortment and large
quantities of transaction data.

We sold and marketed our solutions primarily through a direct sales force. We licensed our products under various pricing plans,
such as per user, per CPU, per site and per enterprise. We generally granted licenses on a perpetual basis. License fees for our
products ranged from $50,000 to in excess of $1.0 million. We provided product maintenance pursuant to service agreements, the
pricing of which was typically based on a percentage of the related product license fee and was generally paid in advance. Professional
service fees for business consulting, implementation support, data processing and educational services were generally priced on a time
and materials basis.

In February 2000, we completed our acquisition of Knowledge Discovery One, Inc., or KDI, an Austin, Texas-based private
company which supplied advanced data analysis solutions for retailers, pursuant to a stock-for-stock merger whereby KD1 became our
wholly owned subsidiary. On September 9, 2003, KD1 was merged with and into the Company and its separate existence ceased.

Following our acquisition of KD 1, we experienced two quarters of increasing revenue and thus continued to expand our sales force
and other personnel. However, commencing in the third quarter of 2000, the market for our products deteriorated precipitously as
Internet retailers, our principal customers, substantially reduced their spending for our products. Accordingly, we experienced
declining revenues and increased net losses.

We began 2001 with approximately 315 employees. In 2001, we instituted two separate restructuring plans to better align our cost
structure with our business outlook and general economic conditions and, in particular, the continuing deterioration in the financial
condition of Internet retailers. During 2001, we reduced our workforce by 169 positions, and recorded total charges of $15.6 million to
reorganize the Company and exit certain facilities in various United States and international locations. However, our revenues
continued to erode as the market for our products continued to decline due to the continued weakness of the technology industry and
Internet-based companies generally, and as the software market began to consolidate, with customers increasingly purchasing sofiware
solutions from fewer independent vendors. In April 2001, we retained J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc. as our financial advisor to explore
strategic alternatives and solicit proposals fram parties with an interest in pursuing a business combination with us. This activity did
not result in a strategic transaction on acceptable terms. In June 2001, Steven Snyder resigned as president and chief executive officer
and Donald Peterson became our president and chief executive officer.

In the first quarter of 2002, in light of our continued declining revenues and net losses, the continued weakness of the technology
industry and Internet-based companies and our deteriorating prospects as a small public company as industry consolidation continued,
we further reduced our workforce by 15 positions, and recorded $367,000 in related employee termination costs. In June 2002, we
reduced our workforce by an additional 18 positions, and recorded an additional $401,000 charge. As of December 31, 2002, we had
52 employees.

In January 2003, we closed sateilite offices in San Francisco, California, London, England and Austin, Texas, and reduced
headcount by 22 positions. In August 2003, we reduced headcount by an additional 12 positions, including Donald Peterson, then our
president and chief executive officer. At December 31, 2003, we had nine full-time employees, and had, and currently have, only
limited business operations. As of April 13, 2004, we have two employees, both of whom are executive officers.

While we expect to continue to service our existing customers, principally through external contractors, and may continue to
derive a declining level of revenues from software licenses and royalties, software maintenance and professional services relating to
existing customers, we are no longer actively marketin decline in 2004, but will continue to constitute a material use of our cash
resources. We expect to incur additional losses and continued negative cash flow for the foreseeable future. We do not expect to
generate an operating profit for 2004 or the foreseeable future.




Developments Relating to Possible Strategic Transactions and the Plan of Liquidation

In February 2003, in response to continued uncertdinties in the marketplace and the difficulties we were likely to continue facing
as a relatively small public company, we engaged U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray, Inc., or Piper Jaffray, to act as our financial advisor in
connection with the potential sale of the Company. From March 2003 through October 2003, the Company pursued discussions with a
number of companies regarding possible transactions and compared potential transactions to each other as well as to an orderly
liquidation of the Company.

In August 2003, our board of directors determined that, in light of the Company’s extensive, but unsuccessful, efforts to achieve
for stockholders a transaction with a third party that would provide certainty of closing and the maximum value reasonably available
in the near term, and the fact that the downsizing and limited operations of the Company meant that the Company would not require a
significant portion of its current cash and short-term investments to continue to operate, it was appropriate and in the best interests of
the Company’s stockholders to provide immediate value and liquidity to the Company’s stockholders through a cash distribution.
Accordingly, the board (i) authorized and directed management to effect a reduction in the Company’s workforce to approximately 10
employees, which was determined to be the minimum number necessary at that time to serve customers, preserve the value of our
intellectual property and administer our limited ongoing business affairs; (ii) determined that in the near term management should
continue to operate the Company’s business on this scaled-back basis, and that it should seek to settle or otherwise resolve, as soon
and to the extent reasonably practicable, its existing obligations and liabilities, while continuing to explore asset sale transactions or
the sale of the Company in its entirety, with a view to resolving the Company’s future and providing maximum additional value to our
stockholders; and (iii) declared a cash distribution of $1.50 per share, or an aggregate of approximately $42.2 million. This cash
distribution was made on September 2, 2003 to stockholders of record as of August 18,2003,

In September 2003, we announced that we had settled our remaining obligations under our leases for our office facilities in Edina,
Minnesota, Roseland, New Jersey and Austin, Texas for an aggregate cash payment of approximately $5.4 million, which cancelled
approximately $21.7 million of the gross obligation, and approximately $9.6 million of the obligations net of anticipated sublease
income, under such leases when measured from June 30, 2003.

In October 2003, the board of directors met to consider the Company’s alternatives, including adopting a plan of liquidation. It was
determined that none of the available strategic transaction proposals appeared to be more favorable than liquidation, and thus on
October 21, 2003 the board unanimously adopted the plan of liquidation and resolved to submit it to stockholders for approval and
recommend that stockholders vote in favor of the plan of liquidation.

Following adoption by the board of directors of the plan of liquidation, the Company continued to receive, and the board of
directors reviewed and carefully considered, various proposals to acquire the Company. On December 30, 2003, we entered into a
patent purchase agreement with Thalveg Data Flow LLC, or Thalveg, to sell to Thalveg our patent portfolio for $1.8 million in cash.
The agreement included a royalty-free license back to the Company under the transferred patents, patent licenses and pending patent
applications, and provided that the closing thereunder was subject to stockholder approval thereof as part of the plan of liquidation or
otherwise. We also granted to a software company a non-exclusive source code license to a portion of our intellectual property for
cash payments of $325,000. Under the license agreement, we will also provide certain consulting services to the licensee for additional
cash payments of $75,000. On December 30, 2003, the board of directors also determined that, in the absence of a definitive
agreement to acquire the Company on terms which the board believed would provide substantial transaction certainty and higher
realizable value to stockholders than liquidation and dissolution in accordance with the plan of liquidation, we should proceed with the
plan of liquidation. Accordingly, the board reaffirmed the plan of llquldanon and its recommendation that stockholders vote in favor
of the plan.

In light of the continuing interest expressed by various parties in a possible acquisition of the Company, on January 9, 2004, we
publicly announced procedures for the submission of best and final acquisition proposals. Our board of directors carefully considered
and reviewed various proposals that were submitted in response to this announcement and determined that implementation of the plan
of liquidation, rather than pursuing and entering into any of such transactions, was the course most likely to obtain the highest value
reasonably available to stockholders. Accordingly, the board authorized the Company to continue to proceed expeditiously to seek
stockholder approval of, and implement, the plan of liquidation.

Recent Events

At a special meeting of the Company’s stockholders held on March 12, 2004, which was reconvened on March 23, 2004, the
proposal to approve and adopt the plan of liquidation did not receive the affirmative vote of a majority of the total number of shares of




common stock outstanding as of the record date for the special meeting required to approve the proposal.

As noted above, by the terms of the patent purchase agreement with Thalveg, the closing thereunder was cnditioned on
stockholder approval thereof, as part of the plan of liquidation or otherwise, and thus the failure of the plan of liquidation to obtain
stockholder approval resulted in this closing condition remaining unsatisfied. Accordingly, following the vote at the reconvened
special meeting on March 23, 2004, we and Thalveg entered into discussions regarding amending the patent purchase agreement to
remove this closing condition and completing the transaction. In the course of these discussions, Thalveg indicated to us that it was
prepared to execute an amendment removing this condition if we agreed to close by March 31, 2004, and that if we would not agree to
close by that time, Thalveg would require that the escrow of half of the purchase price be terminated and its deposit returned. At a
meeting on March 30, 2004, after considering the value to the Company of the Thalveg transaction and the risks to the Company of
losing the benefit of this transaction, the impact of closing the Thalveg transaction on possible actions or transactions the Company
might seek to pursue as a result of the plan of liquidation not receiving the required stockholder approval, and other relevant factors,
the board concluded that it was in the best interest of our stockholders b execute the amendment to the Thalveg agreement and
promptly close the transaction. On March 31, 2004, we and Thalveg executed the amendment to the Thalveg agreement and
completed the sale of the patent portfolio to Thalveg for $1.8 million. Under the agreement, we received a royalty-free license back
under the transferred patents, patent licenses and pending patent applications. This license is transferable, subject to certain restrictions
applicable to the transferee relating to revenues which can be generated by products covered by the license. This transaction did not
involve any of our other intellectual property rights or assets, including our proprietary software products. In addition, on March 31,
2004, we announced that we had granted to a software company a non-exclusive source code license to a portion of our intellectual
property and sold certain technology related to a product discontinued in 2002. The aggregate consideration for this sale and license
was $325,000.

On April 1, 2004, we entered into an agreement with Tornago, Inc., or Tornago, a corporation formed by three non-officer former
employees, to fulfill existing prepaid customer support obligations in exchange for future cash payments of approximately $60,000,
This amount represents approximately 60% of the remaining prepaid deferred maintenance revenue amounts under the existing end
user contracts when measured from April 1, 2004. Under the terms of the agreement, Tornago received a non-transferable license to
relevant intetlectual property solely to provide support and consulting services to end users of our products. Under the agreement, we
will receive a 15% royalty on any follow-on services sold by Tornago through April 1, 2006.

In connection with the agreement with Tormago, we terminated the employment of the remaining members of our engineering
staff, effective March 31, 2004, and will pay severance to these employees in accordance with existing agreements.

We anticipate that our board of directors will continue to review and consider possible actions or transactions which might be
available to resolve the Company’s future in the near term in the best interest of all stockholders. These could include, among other
actions or transactions, further sales or licenses of assets, an acquisition of or investment in the Company or other extraordinary
transaction, adopting a new plan of complete liquidation and dissolution and seeking stockholder approval therefor and/or changes in
the composition of cur board of directors.

Products

We have one principal product, NetP™ 7, which is comprised of two principal components, /ntelligence Manager™, the analytical
hub, and Channel Injectors™, which deliver the analytical results of lntelligence Manager into multiple operational systems that our
customers use. NetP 7 enables multi-channel retailers, distributors and manufacturers to harness the power of predictive analytics to
convert customer, product and transaction data into actionable insight companies can use to generate higher sales, increased revenues
and improved customer loyalty. The following figure is a graphical representation of our NetP 7 product suite.

Intelligence Manager, the core of NetP 7, includes sophisticated analytics to aggregate and analyze data about customers, products
and transactions to generate actionable sales and marketing intelligence, while Channel Injectors automatically inject that intelligence
in real time at various points of customer interaction. /ntelligence Manager allows companies to create and manage highly
personalized campaigns in in-bound, interactive selling situations, such as Web sites and inbound customer contact centers, as well as
outbound selling situations, such as email and outbound telemarketing. /ntelligence Manager integrates with a company’s existing
infrastructure to deliver these campaigns in real time. Companies can use /ntelligence Manager to increase the likelihood that the
products they market to customers will be products the customer will value. Intelligence Manager utilizes advanced one-to-one
recommendation technology combined with business rules to produce product offerings targeted directly to individual customers, [t
provides marketers with the ability to create unique marketing strategies for different groups of customers, interact with those
customers on.an individualized basis, and closely track the impact that different strategies are having on sales and profit by customer



segment, product group and promotional effort. [Intelligence Manager makes it possible for marketers to rapidly modify their
marketing strategy and deploy new marketing campaigns.

NetP 7°s Channel Injectors automatically deliver the output of /ntelligence Manager, such as real time product recommendations,
targeted customer lists, and other forms of sales intelligence, directly into the selling process. Channel Injectors can be utilized at
many customer touch points - inbound and outbound telesales, field sales, Internet, e-mail and direct mail channels as represented by
the following channel specific modules:

*  NetP 7 Telesales Channel Injector™ allows catalogers, manufacturers and distributors to inject sales intelligence into inbound
and outbound call centers, enabling call center representatives to deliver highly targeted, personalized product
recommendations in real time.

o NetP 7 Field Sales Channel Injector™ provides inside and outside direct field sales representatives with a Sales Playbook™
for building sales with each of their customers. The Sales Playbook identifies the products that customers are likely using but
purchasing from competitors, revealing previously hidden sales opportunities. The Sales Playbook also identifies products that
customers purchase on a periodic basis and when they will likely repurchase them.

* NetP 7 E-Commerce Channel Injector™ interacts with customers on a company’s Web site much like a best sales
representative. Working one-to-one in real time via the Web, E-Commerce Channel Injector delivers highly targeted,
personalized product recommendations.

« NetP 7 Direct Marketing Channel injector™ enables companies to provide product recommendations and content for outbound
catalogs, direct mail, fax and e-mail marketing campaigns. Direct Marketing Channel Injector improves the selection process
for direct marketing campaigns by choosing the right products for the right customer or the right customers for a targeted group
of products.

NetP 7 is an installed software solution that is the culmination of our history of product recommendation systems for assisted
marketing. Predecessor products include Personalization Manager, Insight Manager, Distribution Analyst, Net Perceptions for &
Commerce, Net Perceptions for Call Centers, Net Perceptions for Marketing Campaigns, and the Net Perceptions Recommendation
Engine, NetP 7 (or its predecessor products) has accounted for a substantial majority of all historical company revenue since
inception.

Intellectual Property and Other Proprietary Rights

We rely on a combination of trademark, copyright, patent and trade secret laws to protect our rights in our technology. We have
licensed our software and required our customers to enter into license agreements, which impose restrictions on our customers’ ability
to utilize the software. In addition, we seek to avoid disclosure of our trade secrets, including but not limited to requiring those persons
with access to our proprietary information to execute confidentiality agreements with us and restricting access to the source code for
our software.

As of December 31, 2003, we had four pending United States patent applications and four issued United States patents, as well as
exclusive license rights to three issued United States patents from the University of Minnesota. These patents have expiration dates
from 2016 through 2019. As described above, on March 31, 2004, we sold our patent portfolio of pending and issued patents to
Thalveg for $1.8 million in cash. The patent purchase agreement includes a royalty-free, non-exclusive license back to us of the
transferred patents, patent licenses and pending patent applications.

We own a number of trademarks. These include “Net Perceptions™ and “NetP.” The “Net Perceptions™ mark is federally registered
for a term of ten years.

Employees

As of December 31, 2003, we had nine full-time employees. As described above under “Recent Events”, on April 1, 2004, we
entered into an agreement with Tornago to fulfill existing prepaid customer obligations. In connection with this agreement, we
terminated the employment of the remaining members of our engineering staff, effective March 31, 2004, and will pay severance to
these employees in accordance with existing agreements. As of April 13, 2004, we have two employees, both of whom are executive
officers. None of our employees is represented by a collective bargaining agreement, nor have we experienced any work stoppage.




Financial Information About Geographic Areas
For certain geographic financial information, see Note 13 to the Conéolida{ed Financial Statements.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

On September 12, 2003, we announced that we had entered into lease termination agreements for our office facilities located in
Edina, Minnesota, Roseland, New Jersey and Austin, Texas. Net Perceptions’ current activities are conducted in 1,500 square feet of
leased space in Edina, Minnesota pursuant to a month-to-month lease. The Company remains obligated under one office lease for its
vacated San Francisco, California location which expires in August 2004. The majority of this space is sublet and the Company is
seeking to sublease the remaining vacant portion. The Company believes that its current facilities are suitable and adequate for its
present and anticipated near-term needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Initial and Follow-On Public Offering Securities Litigation

On November 2, 2001, Timothy J. Fox filed a purported class action lawsuit against us, FleetBoston Robertson Stephens, Inc., the
lead underwriter of our April 1999 4nitial public offering, several other underwriters who participated in our initial public offering,
Steven J. Snyder, our then president and dhief executive officer, and Thomas M. Donnelly, our then chief financial officer. The
lawsuit was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York and has been assigned to the judge who is
also the pretrial coordinating judge for substantially similar lawsuits involving more than 300 other issuers. An amended class action
complaint, captioned In re Net Perceptions, Inc. Initial Public Offering Securities Litigation, 01 Civ. 9675 (SAS), was filed on April
22, 2002, expanding the basis for the action to include allegations relating to our March 2000 follow-on public offering in addition to
those relating to our initial public offering.

The amended complaint generally alleges that the defendants violated federal securities laws by not disclosing certain actions
taken by the underwriter defendants in connection with our initial public offering and our follow-on public offering. The amended
complaint alleges specifically that the underwriter defendants, with our direct participation and agreement and without disclosure
thereof, conspired to and did raise and increase their underwriters’ compensation and the market prices of our common stock
following our initial public offering and in our follow-on public offering by requiring their customers, in exchange for receiving
allocations of shares of our common stock sold in our initial public offering, to pay excessive commissions on transactions in other
securities, to purchase additional shares of our common stock in the initial public offering aftermarket at pre-determined prices above
the initial public offering price, and to purchase shares of our common stock in our follow-on public offering. The amended complaint
seeks unspecified monetary damages and certification of a plaintiff class consisting of all persons who acquired our common stock
between April 22, 1999 and December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs have since agreed to dismiss the claims against Mr. Snyder and Mr.
Donnelly without prejudice, in return for their agreement to toll any statute of limitations applicable to those claims; and those claims
have been dismissed without prejudice. On July 15, 2002, all of the issuer defendants filed a joint motion to dismiss the plaintiffs’
claims in all of the related cases. On February 19, 2003, the Court ruled against the Company on this motion.

A special committee of our board of directors has authorized the Company to negotiate a settlement of the pending claims
substantially consistent with a memorandum of understanding negotiated among class plaintiffs, issuer defendants and their insurers.
Any such settlement would be subject to approval by the Court.

We believe that the allegations against the Company are without merit. However, we are unable to predict the outcome or ultimate
effect of this litigation.

Blakstad Litigation

On October 29, 2003, a purported class action lawsuit was filed against the Company, its current directors and unnamed
defendants in the District Court, Fourth Judicial District, of the State of Minnesota, County of Hennepin captioned Don Blakstad, on
Behalf of Himself and All others Similarly Situated, vs. Net Perceptions, Inc., John F. Kennedy, Ann L. Winblad, John T. Riedl and
Does 1-25, inclusive, File No. 03-17820. The complaint alleged, among other things, that defendants breached their fiduciary duties of
loyalty, due care, independence, good faith and fair dealing and sought to enjoin the proposed liguidation of the Company and to
recover reasonable attorneys’ and experts’ fees.




On November 24, 2003, defendants filed a motion to dismiss the lawsuit, and, by order dated March 8, 2004, the court dismissed
the plaintiff’s complaint with prejudice. By letter dated March 9, 2004, the plaintiff requested the court’s permission to file a motion to
reconsider the decision dismissing the complaint with prejudice. On March 18, 2004, the court denied plaintiff's request. On April 9,
2004, defendants filed a notice of appeal with the Court of Appeals of the State of Minnesota.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report.




PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock has been quoted on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “NETP” since April 23, 1999. The
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sale prices per share of our common stock as reported on the
NASDAQ National Market.

Price Range of
Common Stock

High Low
2003
First Quarter 1.56 1.22
Second Quarter 1.68 1.41
Third Quarter(1) 1.88 .36
Fourth Quarter(1) Sl 32
2002
First Quarter 2.28 1.32
Second Quarter 1.63 1.02
Third Quarter 1.19 .76
Fourth Quarter 1.47 .78

(1) See discussion below regarding a $1.50 per share cash distribution paid to stockholders on September 2, 2003, which impacted
stock prices in the third and fourth quarters of 2003

As of March 31, 2004, there were 235 stockholders of record registered with our transfer agent, Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota,
N.A. Because many of these shares are held by brokers and other institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are unable to estimate the
total number o f stockholders represented by the record holders.

As described in Item 1 under “Developments Relating to Possible Strategic Transactions and the Plan of Liquidation”, on
September 2, 2003 we paid a return of capital cash distribution to stockholders of record as of August 18, 2003 in the amount of $1.50
per share, or an aggregate of approximately $42.2 million. Other than this special distribution, we have not declared or paid any cash
dividends on our capital stock since our inception. Our board of directors will determine future dividends, if any, based upon our
financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general business condition and other factors that the board deems
relevant. Stockholders should not expect to receive any future dividend payments.

On October 15, 2003, the Nasdaq Stock Market notified us by letter that we had failed to maintain the $1.00 minimum bid price
requirement for continued listing on the Nasdaq National Market and that, if compliance with this requirement would not be
demonstrated by April 12, 2004, we would be notified that our common stock would be delisted from the Nasdaq National Market.
Nasdaq subsequently informed us that any such delisting notification will be deferred until after Nasdaq completes its review of our
application to transfer to the Nasdaq SmallCap Market referred to below. Since September 2, 2003, the payment date for the special
cash distribution to our stockholders of $1.50 per share, our common stock has not closed at a price exceeding $0.54 per share, and we
do not expect to be able to meet the $1.00 minimum bid price requirement for continued inclusion on the Nasdaq National Market. We
may also be delisted if we fail to meet Nasdaq National Market’s other quantitative listing requirements or its qualitative standards.
On April 5, 2004, we submitted an application to the Nasdaq Stock Market to transfer to the Nasdaq SmallCap Market. If our common
stock is accepted for listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, we will have until approximately October 10, 2004 to demonstrate
compliance with the $1.00 minimum bid price requirement.



ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

In the tables below we provide you with selected historical financial data of Net Perceptions, which should be read in conjunction
with the financial statements and the notes to the financial statements and ‘“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” which are included elsewhere in this report. The statement of operations data for each of the
years in the periods ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, and the balance sheet data at December 31, 2003 and 2002, are
derived from, and are qualified by reference to, the audited financial statements included elsewhere in this report. The statement of
operations data for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 and the balance sheet data at December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 are
derived from audited financial statements not included in this report, and have been reclassified to conform with current period
presentation relating to reimbursable expenses that were previously recorded net to cost of revenue.

FIVE YEAR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA(1)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Statement of Operations Data

Revenues:
Product $ 962 $ 1,703 $§ 2979 $ 25,087 $11,408
Service and maintenance 1,622 3,541 _7.535 12,342 3,922
Total revenues 2.584 5,244 10,514 37,429 15,330
Cost of revenues:
Product 12 292 943 1,807 286
Service and maintenance 735 2.101 5,143 11,532 2.936
Total cost of revenues 767 2,393 6,086 13.339 3222
Gross margin 1.817 2,851 4,428 24,090 12.108
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing - 1,347 4,550 15,215 25,589 12,883
Research and development 2,112 5,933 10,572 19,354 8,625
General and administrative 2,261 2,819 6,198 11,146 4,005
Lease abandonment expense — —_ 225 - 1,250 —
Restructuring related charges and impairments(2) 2,251 768 15,551 — —_
Amortization of intangibles — 110 9,650 25,394 —
[mpairment of goodwill and other intangibles(3) — 6,546 75,298 — —
Total operating expenses 7.971 20,726 _ 132,709 82,733 25,513
Loss from operations (6,154) (17,875) (128,281)  (58,643) (13,405)
Other income, net 861 1,141 4,483 5,096 1,366
Net loss $(5203) §16734) 8123708 $(53,547) S(12.030)
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (019 § (06§ (459 § (212 § (078
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share _27,683 _27,216 26,951 25,209 15,402
Cash distributions paid (4) $ 150 — — — —_
Balance Sheet Data
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $11,932 $£62,959 § 73,605 § 68,880 $ 36,854
Working capital 11,600 57,031 64,321 66,364 37,372
Total assets 12,803 65,796 88,878 211,834 58,748
Long-term liabilities, net of current portion — 510 577 1,951 707
Total stockholders’ equity 11,635 58,342 75,407 198,518 48,388

(1) The selected consolidated financial data for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000 include the effects of the
acquisition of KD1 in February 2000, which was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. See Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) In 2001, we incurred a restructuring related charge of $15.6 million, consisting of charges relating to facility consolidation and
employee terminations, losses and estimated losses on the disposal of assets and other restructuring related charges. In 2002, we
incurred a restructuring related charge of $768,000 consisting primarily of charges relating to employee terminations. In 2003, we
incurred a restructuring related charge of $2.3 million, consisting of charges relating to facility consolidation, lease terminations
and employee terminations. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.




(3) At March 31, 2001, we performed an impairment assessment of the goodwill and other intangible assets recorded in connection
with the acquisition of KD1. As a result of our review, we recorded a $75.3 million impairment charge to reduce goodwill and
other intangible assets to their estimated fair values. At December 31, 2002, we performed an additional impairment assessment of
the remaining goodwill and other intangible assets recorded in connection with the acquisition of KD1. As a result of our review,
we recorded a $6.5 million impairment charge to reduce goodwill and other intangible assets to zero value. See Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(4) On September 2, 2003, we paid a return of capital cash distribution to stockhalders of record as of August 18, 2003 in the amount
of $1.50 per share. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS :

OVERVIEW

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto
appearing elsewhere in this report.

We were incorporated in Delaware in July 1996, and our initial product was shipped in January 1997. From inception through late
2000, we expanded our organization by hiring personnel in key areas, particularly marketing, sales and research and development. Our
total number of employees was 315 on December 31, 2000. During 2001, 2002 and 2003, we instituted certain restructuring plans to
align our cost structure with our business outlook and general economic conditions. In connection with our restructuring activities, our
total number of employees was reduced to 98 as of December 31, 2001, 52 as of December 31, 2002, and 9 as of December 31, 2003.
As of April 13, 2004, the Company has two employees, both of whom are executive officers.

We have sustained losses on a quarterly and annual basis since inception. As of December 31, 2003, we had an accumulated deficit
of $222 million. Qur net loss was $5.3 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, compared to a net loss of $16.7
million in the same period of the prior year. These losses resulted from costs incurred in the development and marketing of our
products and services, significant costs incurred related to restructuring activities, significant costs for outside professional services
refated to the exploration of various strategic alternatives for the Company, as well as a decline in our revenues since the third quarter
of 2000.

In February 2003, we engaged Piper Jaffray to act as our financial advisor in connection with the potential sale of the Company.
On September 2, 2003, we paid a return of capital cash distribution to stockholders of record as of August 18, 2003 in the amount of
$1.50 per share or a total of approximately $42.2 million, which was reflected as a reduction to additional paid-in capital. We also
reduced our workforce by 12 positions to 10 full-time employees. In addition, as a result of the cash distribution paid on September 2,
2003, our board of directors approved an adjustment to our outstanding options to take effect on the close of business on September 3,
2003. The adjustment was to in no event reduce the exercise price of any options to less than $0.01 per share or increase the number of
shares subject to such options to a number exceeding the number of shares of common stock that are registered and available for
issuance. In accordance with FIN 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation and interpretation of APB
No. 25,” there was no accounting consequence due to the changes made to the exercise price or the number of shares other than future
potential dilution to stockholders because the aggregate intrinsic value of each award immediately after the change was not greater
than the aggregate intrinsic value of the award immediately before the change and the ratio of the exercise price per share to the
market value per share was not reduced.

On October 21, 2003, we announced that our board of directors had unanimously approved a Plan of Complete Liquidation and
Dissolution, referred to as the plan of liquidation. The plan of liquidation was submitted to the Company’s stockholders for approval
and adoption at a special meeting of stockholders originally scheduled for March 12, 2004, which was adjourned and was reconvened
on March 23, 2004. At the reconvened special meeting, the proposal to approve and adopt the plan of liquidation did not receive the
affirmative vote of a majority of the 28,145,338 shares of common stock outstanding as of the record date for the special meeting
required to approve the proposal. Of the 15,773,134 shares represented in person or by proxy at the reconvened special meeting,
13,810,233 shares voted in favor of the proposal, 1,925,694 shares voted against and 37,207 shares abstained.

On March 31, 2004, we and Thalveg executed an amendment to the patent purchase agreement which had been entered into on

December 30, 2003, and we completed the sale of our patent portfolio provided for therein for a purchase price of $1.8 million in cash.
The patent purchase agreement, as amended, includes a royalty-free, non-exclusive license back to us. The license is transferable,
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subject to certain restrictions applicable to the transferee relating to revenues that can be generated by products covered by the license.
This transaction did not involve any of our other intellectual property rights or assets, including our proprietary software products. In
addition, on March 31, 2004 we announced that we had granted to a sofiware company a non-exclusive source code license to a
portion of the Company’s had inteliectual property and sold certain technology related to a product discontinued in 2002. The
aggregate consideration for this sale and license was $325,000.

On April 1, 2004, we entered into an agreement with Tornago, Inc., or Tornago, a corporation formed by three non-officer former
employees, to fulfill existing prepaid customer support. obligations in exchange for future cash payments of approximately $60,000.
This amount represents approximately 60% of the remaining prepaid deferred maintenance revenue amounts under the existing end
user contracts when measured from April 1, 2004. The Company will continue to recognize the deferred revenue as earned and the
$60,000 will be reflected as cost of revenue. Under the terms of the agreement, Tornago received a non-transferable license to relevant
intellectual property solely to provide support and consulting services to end users of our products. Under the agreement, we will
receive a 15% royalty on any follow-on services sold by Tomago through April 1, 2006.

In connection with the agreement with Tornago, we terminated the employment of the remaining members of our engineering
staff, effective March 31, 2004, and will pay severance to these employees in accordance with existing agreements As of April 13,
2004, the Company has two employees, both of whom are executive officers.

While we expect ta continue to service our existing customers through Tornago and may continue to derive a declining level of
revenues from software licenses and royalties, software maintenance and professional services relating to existing customers, we are
no longer actively marketing or directly supporting our products and have not retained any employeesto do so. We expect that the size
of our customer base will decline and we do not expect that future product or service revenues, if any, will be significant. We
anticipate that our operating expenses will continue to decline in 2004, but will continue to constitute a material use of our cash
resources. We expect to incur additional losses and continued negative cash flow for the foreseeable future. While we expect to report
a net profit for the first quarter of 2004 due to the Thalveg transaction, we do not expect to generate an operating profit for 2004 or the
foreseeable future.

We anticipate that our board of directors will continue to review and consider possible actions or transactions which might be
available to resolve the Company’s future in the near term in the best interest of all stockholders. These could include, among other
actions or transactions, further sales or licenses of assets, an acquisition of or investment in the Company or other extraordinary
transaction, adopting a new plan of complete fiquidation and dissolution and seeking shareholder approval therefor, and/or changes in
the composition of our board of directors.

Period-to-period comparisons of our operating results should not be relied upon as predictive of future performance. Our prospects '
must be considered in light of the foregoing and the risks identified below under the heading “Risks That May. Affect Future Results.”
We may not be successful in addressing these risks.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTlMATES

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these
financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and -
expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate. our estimates, including those
related to bad debts, investments, intangible assets, restructuring liabilities, contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements. Events occurring subsequent to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, such as
those described in the section of this report entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fmancnal Condition and Results of
Operations — Overview,” may cause us to re-evaluate these policies.

Revenue Recognition. Our revenues are recognized in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Statement of Position (“SOP”) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” as amended by SOP 98-4 and SOP 98-9, as well as Technical
Practice Aids issued from time to time by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in accordance with the Securities




and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) No. 104, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements.” We derive
revenues from software licenses, software maintenance and professional services. Maintenance includes telephone and Web-based
technical support, bug fixes and rights to unspecified upgrades on a when-and-if available basis. Professional services include project
planning, implementation and testing, consulting, and ongoing customer support.

For software arrangements that include multiple software products, maintenance or services, we allocate the total arrangement fee
using the residual method. Under the residual method, the fair value of the undelivered maintenance and services elements, as
determined by vendor-specific objective evidence, is deferred and the remaining (residual) arrangement fee is recognized as software
product revenue. For software arrangements in which we do not have vendor-specific objective evidence of undelivered elements,
revenue is deferred until the earlier of when vendor-specific objective evidence is determined for the undelivered elements or when all
elements for which we do not have vendor-specific objective evidence have been delivered.

Revenues from license fees are recognized when a non-cancelable agreement has been executed, the product has been shipped or
electronically delivered, there are no uncertainties surrounding product acceptance, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection of
the related receivable is considered probable. If the fee due from the customer is not fixed or determinable, revenues are recognized as
payments become due from the customer. If we do not consider collection to be probable, then revenues are recognized when the fee
is collected.

License revenues related to license terms of less than twenty-four months are recognized ratably over the term of the license
period. When we offer products and services on a hosted basis, up front set-up fees are deferred and recognized ratably over the
estimated service period.

We recognize revenues allocable to maintenance ratably over the term of the agreement. We evaluate arrangements that include
professional and/or data processing services to determine whether those services are essential to the functionality of other elements of
the arrangement. If services are considered essential, revenues from the arrangement are recognized using contract accounting,
generally on a percentage-of-completion basis. When we do not consider the professional services to be essential, we recognize the
revenues allocable to the services as they are performed.

Revenue recognition rules for software companies are very complex. We follow specific and detailed guidelines in determining the
proper amount of revenue to be recorded; however, certain judgments affect the application of our revenue recognition policy.

The most significant judgments for revenue recognition typically involve whether there are any significant uncertainties regarding
customer acceptance and whether collectibility can be considered probable. In addition, our transactions often consist of multiple
element arrangements that must be analyzed to determine the relative fair value of each element, the amount of revenue to te
recognized upon shipment, if any, and the period and conditions under which deferred revenue should be recognized.

Allowance for doubtful accounts. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resuiting from the inability of
our customers to make required payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required. Actual collection results could differ materially from those
estimated and have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Litigation. We have not recorded an estimated liability related to the pending class action lawsuit in which we are named. For a
discussion of this matter, see the section of this report entitled “Legal Proceedings.” Due to the uncertainties related to both the
likelihood and the amount of any potential loss, no estimate was made of the liability that could result from an unfavorable outcome.
As additional information becomes available, we will assess the potential liability and make or revise our estimate(s) accordingly,
which could materially impact our results of operations and financial position.




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER .31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

The following table sets forth certain items in our. statements of operations as a percentage of total revenues for the periods
indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Revenues:
Product 37% 32% 28%
Service and maintenance 63 _68 _12
Total revenues 100 100 100
Cost of revenues:
Product 1 6 9
Service and maintenance _29 _40 _49
Total cost of revenues 30 46 58
Gross margin 70 54 42
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 52 87 145
Research and development 82 113 101
General and administrative 87 54 58
Lease abandonment expense — — 2
Restructuring related charges
and impairments 87 14 148
Amortization of intangibles — 2 92
Impairment of goodwill and
other intangibles. . _— 125 716
Total operating expenses 308 395 1,262
Loss from operations (238) (341 (1.220)
Other income, net _33 22 43
Net loss L05% __B19H% (L177)%

REVENUES

Total revenues. Total revenues decreased 51% to $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, from $5.2 million in 2002.
Revenues declined 50% in 2002 from $10.5 million in 2001. Revenues from sales in the United States were $2.3 million in 2003
compared to $4.5 million in 2002 and $8.5 million in 2001 representing 89%, 86% and 80% of total revenues respectively. Revenues
from international sales in 2003 were $284,000, or 11% of total revenues, compared to $719,000, or 14% of total revenues, in 2002
and $2.0 million, or 20% of total revenues, in 2001. As a result of the downsizing of our business and operations, we no longer
maintain a direct sales force. International sales have generally been denominated in United States dollars.

As described in this Item 7 under “Overview”, we are no longer actively marketing our products, and we do not expect that future
product or service revenues, if any, will be significant.

Product revenues. Product revenues decreased 44% to $962,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to $1.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002. Product revenues declined 43% in 2002 from $3.0 million in 2001. Product revenues
comprised 37% of total revenues for 2003 compared to 32% and 28% for 2002 and 2001 respectively. The decrease in product
revenues in absolute dollars is attributable in part to increased deferral of purchase decisions by our then current and potential
customers due to economic conditions, concerns about our ability to support products in the future, elections to utilize alternatives to
our products and reduced selling activities. We expect limited product revenues for the foreseeable future.

Service and maintenance revenues. Service and maintenance revenues consist primarily of professional and maintenance services.
Our professional service revenues include business consulting, implementation support, and educational services and are generally
offered on a time and materials basis. Maintenance revenues are generally derived from annual service agreements and are recognized
ratably over the term of the agreement. Service and maintenance revenues decreased 54% to $1.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2003 from $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Service and maintenance revenues decreased 53% in 2002 from
$7.5 million in 2001. Service and maintenance revenues comprised 63%, 68% and 72% of total revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in service and maintenance revenues in absolute dollars reflected




lower levels of consulting and maintenance services due to the combined effect of fewer new customer acquisitions and a decline in
our customer base, as well as customer perceptions about our ability to support our products in the future. As described in this Item 7
under “Overview”, we entered into an agreement on April 1, 2004 with Tornago, Inc. to fulfill our existing prepaid customer support
obligations. We do not anticipate entering into additional service and maintenance agreements with customers. Therefore, we expect
service and maintenance revenues to continue to decline in 2004.

COST OF REVENUES

Cost of product revenues. Cost of product revenues consists primarily of the cost of royalties paid to third-party vendors and
amortization of acquired technology costs. Cost of product revenues decreased 96% to $12,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003
from $292,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. Cost of product revenue decreased 69% in 2002 from $943,000 million in
2001. Cost of product revenue in 2003, 2002 and 2001 represented 1%, 17% and 32% of the product revenues, respectively. The
decrease in cost of product revenues in absolute dollars is due to lower royalties payable to third parties and no amortization expense
related to intangible assets in the first nine months of 2003. Since all intemal development costs incurred in the research and
development of new software products and enhancements to existing software products have been expensed as incurred, cost of
product revenues includes no amortization of capitalized software development costs. We do not expect any future costs of product
revenues to be significant.

Cost of service and maintenance revenues. Cost of service and maintenance revenues consists primarily of personnel-related and
infrastructure costs incurred in previding telephone and Web-based support of our software products, as well as professional,
consulting and educational related services ta customers. Cost of service and maintenance revenues decreased 64% to $755,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2003 from $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Cost of service and maintenance revenue
decreased 59% in 2002 from $5.1 million in 2001. Cost of service and maintenance revenue in 2003, 2002 and 2001 represented 47%,
59% and 68% of the related service and maintenance revenues, respectively. The decrease in cost of services and maintenance
revenues in absolute dollars and as a percentage of revenues is primarily due to continued headcount reductions in our technical
organization as a result of our restructuring efforts and significantly decreased use of third-party consultants to staff consulting
engagements. Due to the further headcount reductions undertaken in August 2003 and thereafter, and, as described above in this Item
7 under “Overview”, because we entered into a contract with Tornago to fulfill certain prepaid support obligations and in connection
therewith terminated the employment of the remaining members of our engineering staff, we expect that our cost of service and
maintenance revenues will decrease in 2004.

OPERATING EXPENSES

In the first quarter of 2003, we reduced our operating expenses through the closure of three remote offices and a reduction in
workforce affecting 22 employees. On August 6, 2003, we reduced our workforce by an additional 12 employees. At December 31,
2003 we had 9 full-time employees, which was determined to be the minimum number necessary at that time to serve customers,
preserve the value of our intellectual property and administer our limited ongoing business affairs. As described in this Item 7 under
“Overview”, we are no longer actively marketing our products and do not expect to incur significant operating expenses in 2004
relating to sales and marketing. Also as described above in this Item 7 under “Overview”, at a reconvened special meeting of the
Company’s stockholders held on March 23, 2004, the proposal to approve and adopt the plan of liquidation did not receive the
affirmative vote of a majority of the total number of shares outstanding as of the record date for the special meeting required to
approve the proposal. We anticipate that our board of directors will continue to review and consider possible actions or transactions
which might be available to resolve the Company’s future in the near term in the best interest of all stockholders. These could include,
among other actions or transactions, further sales or licenses of assets, an acquisition of or investment in the Company or other
extraordinary transaction, adopting a new plan of complete liquidation and dissolution and seeking stockholder approval therefor,
and/or changes in the composition of our board of directors. We anticipate that this ongoing review and consideration may entail
significant expenses, consisting principally of professional fees and expenses.

Sales and marketing. Sales and marketing expenses consisted primarily of salaries, other employee-related costs, commissions and
other incentive compensation, travel and entertainment and expenditures for marketing programs such as collateral materials, trade
shows, public relations and creative services. Sales and marketing expenses decreased 70% to $1.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to $4.6 million recorded for the year ended December 31, 2002. Sales and marketing expenses
decreased 70% in 2002 compared to $15.2 million in 2001. Sales and marketing expenses were 52%, 87% and 145% of total revenues
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in sales and marketing expenses in absolute dollars
is primarily due to headcount reductions as a result of our restructuring efforts and our decision to no longer actively market our
products. We expect sales and marketing expenses will be minimal, if any, in 2004.
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Research and development. Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries, other employee-related costs and
consulting fees related to the development of our products. Research and development expenses decreased 64% to $2.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $5.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Research and development expenses
decreased 44% in 2002 compared to $10.6 million in 2001. Research and development expenses were 82%, 113 % and 101% of total
revenues for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in research and development expenses in
absolute dollars is primarily due to continued headcount reductions as a result of our restructuring efforts. As described above in this
Item 7 under “Overview”, we terminated the employment of the remaining members of our engineering staff effective March 31,
2004. We expect to incur no further research and development expenses after that date.

General and administrative. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, other employee-related costs,
provision for doubtful accounts and professional service fees. General and administrative expenses decreased 20% to $2.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. General and administrative
expenses decreased 55% in 2002 compared to $6.2 million in 2001. General and administrative expenses were 87%, 54% and 58% of
total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, espectively. The decrease in general and administrative
expenses in absolute dollars during the year ended December 31, 2003 was primarily due to headcount reductions as part of our
restructuring efforts, offset by increased professional fees associated with the settlement or other resolution of our existing obligations
and liabilities, our continued exploration of asset dispositions, and our continued consideration and evaluation of strategic alternatives.
Although we expect personnel-related and other general and administrative expenses to decline in 2004, continued high levels of
outside professional fees, and other costs, such as directors and officers liability insurance, associated with continuing as a public
reporting company, may offset any such decrease.

Restructuring related charges and impairments. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, we instituted certain restructuring plans to better
align our cost structure with our business outlook and general economic conditions. Under the restructuring plans, we recorded
restructuring related charges totaling $2.3 million, $768,000 and $15.6 million during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. These
amounts represented 87%, 14% and 148% of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Substantially all restructuring related charges had been paid as of December 31, 2003.

Amortization of intangibles. Amortization expense was $0 for the year ended December 31, 2003. This is compared to $257,000
and $10.1 million (including $147,000 and $443,000 of amortization and goodwill and other intangibles included in cost of product
revenues) for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 respectively. These amounts represented 0%, 5% and 96% of total
revenues for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Total amortization is expected to be $0 during 2004
due to the $6.5 million impairment charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2002 to reduce goodwill and other intangible assets to zero
value.

Other income, net. Other income, net, consists of interest income, interest expense, foreign currency transaction losses or gains and
other expense. Net other income decreased 25% in 2003 to $861,000 from $1.1 million in 2002. Net other income decreased 75% in
2002 compared to $4.5 million in 2001. The decrease in net other income for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to the same
period in 2002 was primarily due to lower cash and investment balances as a result of the special cash distribution to stockholders on
September 2, 2003 and lower interest rates. The decrease in net other income for 2002 compared to 2001 was attributable to a decrease
in interest income earned and the $1.6 million loss on investment resulting from our sale of $2.1 million in WorldCom bonds upon
announcement of accounting issues by WorldCom, offset against $200,000 received as a result of a related dispute settlement.

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

We have incurred significant operating losses for all periods from inception through December 31, 2003. For income tax purposes,
the Company has available federal net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $119 million and research and development
credit carry-forwards of approximately $151,000 at December 31, 2003. The net operating loss and research and de velopment credit
carry-forwards expire in 2011 through 2023 if not previously utilized. The utilization of these carry-forwards may be subject to
limitations based on past and future changes in ownership of the Company pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 382. If the
Company were to be acquired at its recent stock value such that Section 382 is applicable, this would eliminate the ability to use a
substantial majority of these carry-forwards. Further, if our historic business were not substantially continued for two years after a
Section 382 change in ownership, the full amount of carry-forwards would be eliminated. Future tax benefits have not been
recognized in the financial statements, as their utilization is not considered probable based on the weight of available information.




SELECTED CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The following table sets forth quarterly unaudited financial data for 2003 and 2002, as well as the percentage of our total revenues
represented by each item. This unaudited financial data has been prepared on the same basis as the audited financial statements
included in this report and includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring accruals that are considered necessary for a
fair presentation of such information when read in conjunction with our audited financial statements and notes thereto appearing
elsewhere in this report. You should not draw any conclusions from the operating results for any quarter.

Dec.31 Sept.30  June30 March 3l Dec. 31 Sept. 30  June30 March3l
2003 2003 2003 2003 2002 2002 2002 2002
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

Results of Operations:

Revenues:
Product $38 $§ 95 $343 § 138 $ 145 § 613 $ 902 § 43
Service and maintenance 231 343 570 478 748 999 697 1,097
Total revenues 617 438 913 616 893 1612 1,599 1,140
Cost of revenues:
Product 4 — 8 — 38 68 63 123
Service and maintenance 120 164 255 216 319 473 539 770
Total cost of revenues 124 164 263 216 357 541 602 893
Gross margin 493 274 650 400 536 1,071 997 247
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 3 157 481 706 940 753 1,376 1,481
Research and development 496 427 524 665 1,136 1,213 1,624 1,960
General and administrative 981 568 276 436 628 514 935 742
Lease abandonment expense — — — — — — — —
Restructuring related charges and impairments — 1,081 — 1,200 — — 401 367
Amortization of intangibles — — — — 27 28 27 28
Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles — — — — _6.546 — — —
Total operating expenses 1,480 _2203 1281 3007 _9.277 _2508 _4363 4,578
Loss from operations 987) (1,929) (631) (2,607) (8,741) (1,437) (3,366) (4,331)
Other income {expense), net 22 216 415 208 443 811 (972) 859
Net loss 5965 ML703) S016) 52399 MR208) 3626 AR 334D
Basic and diluted net loss pershare $£(0.03) $ (0.06) $ (000 $£ (0.09 § (030) § (0.02) § (0.16) £ (O.13)




Dec.31  Sept.30 June30 March31 Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June30  March 31
2003 2003 2003 2003 2002 2002 2002 2002

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)
Percentage of Total
Revenues
Revenues:
Product 62%  22% 38% 22% 16% 38% 56% 4%
Service and maintenance 38 18 62 78 84 62 44 96
Total revenues 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Cost of revenues:
Product 1 — 1 — 4 4 4 11
Service and maintenance 19 37 28 35 _36 30 34 67
Total cost of revenues 20 37 29 35 _40 34 38 78
Gross margin 80 £3 Ay 65 60 66 62 22
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing — 36 53 115 105 47 86 130
Research and development 81 97 57 108 127 75 101 172
General and administrative 159 130 30 71 71 31 58 65
Lease abandonment
expense . — — — — — — —
Restructuring related
charges and impairments — 240 — 194 — — 25 32
Amortization of intangibles —_— — — — 3 2 2 3
Impairment of goodwil!
and other intangibles - _ _= it __3; _ e _
Total operating expenses 240 503 150 488 1.039 155 272 402
Loss from operations (160)  (440) (69) (423) 979) (89) 210) (380)
Other income (expense),
net 3 49 45 34 50 50 (61) I3
Net loss ({3D% @)% Q4% (8% [@0% [9% LID% (05%

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Since inception, we have financed our operations primarily through the sale of equity securities. At December 31, 2003, we had
$11.9 million of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments, compared to $63.0 million at December 31, 2002. This significant
reduction was primarily due to the special cash distribution paid on September 2, 2003 to record holders of our common stock on
August 18, 2003 in the aggregate amount of approximately $42.2 million.

Cash used in operations was $9.4 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, compared to $9.8 million for 2002 and
$22.3 million for 2001. Cash used in operations for all periods resulted primarily from net losses, as adjusted for non-cash expenses.
In addition, in 2003 the Company used $5.4 million to terminate its obligations under three real estate leases. The decrease in cash
used in operations ‘in the twelve months of 2003 as compared to the same period in 2002 is principally a function of the reduced
operating expenses and cost of revenues that have resulted from the restructuring plans described below, as adjusted for non-cash
expenses. We do not expect to receive any significant amounts of cash from future operations, and we expect that we will continue to
incur legal fees, salary expenses and other ongoing costs that will constitute a material use of cash.

A total of $22.9 million in net cash was provided by investing activities for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003,
compared to $34.6 million of cash provided from investing activities in the same period for 2002. Prior to September 2003, our
investing activities consisted primarily of net purchases of short-term investments and marketable securities. Since the special cash
distribution paid on September 2, 2003, we have held all of our cash in money market accounts and we plan to continue this policy.

Net cash used in financing activities was $41.3 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, compared to net cash
generated in investing activities of $33,000 for 2002 and net cash used of $498,000 for 2001. Net cash was used in financing activities
during 2003 due to the $42.2 million cash distribution paid on September 2, 2003, partially offset by proceeds from sales of our




common stock pursuant to the exercise of options. Net cash in financing activities in 2002 and 2001 was primarily attributable to
proceeds from sales-of our common stock pursuant to the exercise of options, offset by principal payments on capital leases in 2001.

As described in Item I under “Developments Relating to Possible strategic Transactions and Plan of Liquidation”, on September 2,
2003, we paid a return of capital cash distribution to stockholders of record as of August 18, 2003 in the amount of $1.50 per share, or
an aggregate amount of approximately $42.2 million.

During 2003, 2002 and 2001, we instituted certain restructuring plans to better align our cost structure with our business outlook
and general economic conditions. Under the restructuring plans, we recorded restructuring related charges totaling $2.3 million,
$768,000 and $15.6 million during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. A total of approximately $6.9 million was charged against the
restructuring reserve during 2003, lowering the accrued restructuring liability to approximately $37,000.

Of the $37,000 restructuring reserve remaining as of December 31, 2003, management estimates that approximately $30,000 will
be a use of cash in 2004 for remaining rent commitments, less estimated sublease income, related to facilities we have vacated. The
remaining $7,000 relates to accrued severance benefits for a former executive officer,

Capital expenditures were $0 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003 and 2002. Capital expenditures were higher in years
prior to 2002 and reflected a significantly larger employee base and level of operations. As of December 31, 2003, we had no material
long-term commitments for capital expenditures and we do not anticipate entering into any further material commitments for capital
expenditures. Since 1999, we have purchased property and equipment with cash. From inception through 1998, we generally funded
the purchase of property and equipment with capital leases.

QOur remaining commitments consist primarily of obligations under one operating lease. The following summarizes this contractual
lease obligation at December 31, 2003.

2004 Total

(in thousands)
Operating leases $ 89 § 89
Executed sublease agreements (59) __ (59
Net contractual cash obligation $ 30 £ 30

The operating lease obligation relates to one remaining vacated facility in San Francisco, California, the majority of which is
sublet. We are actively seeking to sublease the remaining vacant portion of this office space and are also attempting to negotiate the
termination of this lease. We currently occupy approximately 1,500 square feet of office space pursuant to a month-to-month lease in
Edina, Minnesota. As of December 31, 2003, we estimated total future sublease income of $59,000 pursuant to existing sublease

arrangements.

We believe that existing cash and investments will be sufficient to meet our expected working capital needs for the next twelve
months. However, uncertainties exist as to the amounts we will receive in connection with any potential sales of assets and the precise
value of our existing obligations and liabilities, which may exceed our available cash and cash equivalents. Furthermore, we may be
unable to settle or otherwise resolve our remaining obligations and liabilities, and we may incur or be subject to additional obligations
and liabilities, which could collectively exceed our available cash and cash equivalents.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. (“FIN™) 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51”. FIN No. 46 requires certain variable interest entities, or VIEs, to be consolidated by the
primary beneficiary of the entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest,
or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from
other parties. In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46-R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”, which represents a
revision to FIN No. 46. The provisions of FIN No. 46-R are effective for interests in VIEs as of the first interim or annual period
ending after December 15, 2003. The Company currently has no contractual relationship or other business relationship with a variable
interest entity and therefore the adoption of FIN No. 46 and FIN No. 46-R did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial
position, results o f operations or cash flows.
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CERTAIN RISK FACTORS

The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known
to us or which are currently deemed immaterial may also impair our financial condition. If any of these risks actually occur, our
Jfinancial condition could be materially adversely affected.

We Have Significantly Curtailed Business Operations, But Our Future Course of Action is Uncertain, and Accordingly, the
Value of Your Shares May Decrease

We have significantly curtailed our business operations. We anticipate that our board of directors will continue to review and
consider possible actions or transactions which might be available to resolve the Company’s future in the near term in the best interest
of all stockholders. These could include, among other actions or transactions, further sales or licenses of assets, an acquisition of or
investment in the Company or other extraordinary transaction, adopting a new plan of complete liquidation and dissolution and
seeking stockholder approval therefor, and/or changes in the composition of our board of directors. We expect to continue to incur
operating, legal and other expenses, which will decrease our net cash and thus the potential value of the Company. Even if we identify
such actions or one or more transactions as an appropriate strategy to resolve the Company’s future in the near term in the best
interests of our stockholders, we cannot assure you that we will be able to take or complete such actions or transaction(s), especially
any transaction which would require stockholder approval. Nor can we assure you that any such action or transaction would result in a
positive return on your investment, and may in fact result in a substantial decrease in the value of your stock. These factors
substantially increase the uncertainty, and thus the risk, of investing in our shares. You should also not expect any further cash
distributions.

We do not expect to generate an operating profit for the foreseeable future.

We had net losses of $5.0 million in 1998, $12.0 million in 1999, $53.5 million in 2000 (inctuding $27.6 million of amortization of
goodwill and other intangibles related to the acquisition of KD1 and non-cash stock compensation expense) and $123.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001 (including $15.6 million in restructuring related charges, $10.3 million of amortization of goodwill and
other intangibles and non-cash stock compensation expense and a $75.3 million charge for the impairment of goodwill and other
intangibles). Our net loss was $16.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 (including $768,000 in restructuring related
charges, $299,000 of amortization of intangibles and non-cash stock compensation expense and a $6.5 million charge for the
impairment of goodwill and other intangibles) and $5.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003). As of December 31, 2003, we
had an accumulated deficit of $222 million. As described in the section of this report entitied “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Overview,” we have ceased to actively market our products and we do not expect
to generate significant future operating revenues. We do not expect to generate an operating profit for 2004 or the foreseeable future.

Our Ability to Operate or Carry-Out Any Strategy To Resolve the Company’s Future Will Be Substantially Impaired If We
Lose Our Employees.

As of March 31, 2004, we had two remaining employees, each of whom is an executive officer. The loss of the services of either
of such persons, in particular, the cessation of employment of our President and Chief Financial Officer, Thomas M. Donnelly, would
seriously harm our ability to operate or implement any strategy to resolve the Company’s future. We cannot assure you that either or
both of the Company’s executive officers will remain with the Company.

Certain Transactions May Impair or Eliminate Utilization of our Net Operating Loss Carryforwards

As noted above under “We Have Significantly Curtailed Business Operations But Our Future Course of Action is Uncertain, and
Accordingly, the Value of Your Shares May Decrease,” the possibilities for resolving the Company’s future in the near term may
include an acquisition of the Company through a merger or other business combination. If we effect a combination with a business
that has operating income, we cannot assure you that we will be able to utilize all or even a portion of our existing net operating loss
carry-forwards for federal tax purposes following such a business combination. If the Company were to be acquired at its recent stock
value such that the limitations under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, are applicable, this would
eliminate the ability to use a substantial majority of these carry-forwards. Further, if our historic business were not substantially
continued for two years after a Section 382 change in ownership, the full amount of carry-forwards would be eliminated. If we are
unable to make use of our existing net operating loss carry-forwards, the tax advantages of such a combination may be limited, which
could negatively impact the price of our stock and the value of your investment. These factors substantially increase the uncertainty,
and thus the risk, of investing in our shares.




We may be unable to realize additional proceeds from sale(s) of our remaining assets.

As described in Item 1 above under “Recent Events”, on March 31, 2004, we sold our patent portfolio for a purchase price of $1.8
million in cash pursuant to a patent purchase agreement entered into in December 2003 and amended as of March 31, 2004. The patent
purchase agreement includes a royalty-free non-exclusive license back to the Company under the transferred patents, patent licenses
and pending patent applications. The license back to the Company is transferable, subject to certain restrictions applicable to the
transferee relating to revenues which can be generated by products covered by the license. This transaction did not involve any of our
other intellectual property rights or assets, including our proprietary software product NetP7. However, we are unable to predict
whether any such rights or assets will be sold or, if such sale(s) occur, the terms of such sale(s). The price(s) at which we may be able
to sell these assets will depend largely on factors beyond our control, including, without limitation, the extent of actual or perceived
competition between, and the availability of financing for, prospective purchasers of the assets and such prospective purchasers’ plans
for our intellectual property and products as integrated into their existing businesses. In addition, because some of these remaining
assets may decline in value over time, we may not be able to consummate the sale of these assets in time to generate meaningful value.
Investors should not assume that we will be able to realize additional proceeds from sale(s) of our remaining assets.

Our Common Stock may be Delisted from Nasdaq.

On October 15, 2003, the Nasdaq Stock Market notified us by letter that we had failed to maintain the $1.00 minimum bid price
requirement for continued listing on the Nasdaq National Market and that, if compliance with this requirement could not be
demonstrated by April 12, 2004, we would be notified that our common stock would be delisted from the Nasdaq National Market.
Nasdaq subsequently informed us that any such delisting notification will be deferred until after Nasdaq completes its review of our
application to transfer to the Nasdaq SmaliCap Market referred to below. Since September 2, 2003, the date on which the special cash
distribution to our stockholders of $1.50 per share was paid, our common stock has not closed over $0.54 per share, and we do not
expect to be able to again meet the $1.00 minimum bid price requirement for continued inclusion on the Nasdaq National Market, We
may also be delisted if we fail to meet Nasdaq National Market’s other quantitative listing requirements or its qualitative standards. In
addition, termination of the registration of our common stock under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as described below under
the caption “Compliance with public company reporting requirements is costly, and we may seek to terminate the applicability of such
requirements to us and our common stock”, would result in the delisting of our common stock, and our common stock would no
longer be “authorized” for Nasdaq trading and Nasdaq would cease to provide any quotations.

On April 5, 2004, we submitted an application to the Nasdaq Stock Market to transfer to the Nasdaq SmallCap Market. If our
common stock is accepted for listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, we will have until approximately October 10, 2004 to
demonstrate compliance with the $1.00 minimum bid price requirements.

[f our common stock is not accepted for listing on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, or is otherwise delisted from Nasdagq, trading of
our common stock, if any, would then be conducted on the over-the-counter market in automated quotation systems, called the “Pink
Sheets”, and/or on the OTC Bulletin Board of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. [n this event, stockholders may find
it more difficult to dispose of, or to obtain accurate quotations as to the price of, our common stock, the liquidity of our stock may be
reduced, making it difficult for a stockholder to buy or sell our stock at competitive market prices or at all, we may lose support from
institutional investors and/or market makers that currently buy and selt our stock and the price of our common stock could decrease
further. Investors should not assume that our common stock will continue to be listed and traded on the Nasdaq National Market or the
Nasdaq SmallCap Market or traded on the OTC Bulletin Board.

Stockholders May Be Liable to Our Creditors for Up to Amounts Received From Us if Our Reserves Are Inadequate

If our board of directors were to adopt a new plan of complete liquidation and dissolution and such-plan was approved by our
stockholders, a Certificate of Dissolution would be filed with the State of Delaware. Pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation
Law, we would continue to exist for three years after the dissolution became effective or for such Jonger period as the Delaware Court
of Chancery directed, for the purpose of prosecuting and defending suits against us and enabling us gradually to wind up our business,
dispose of our property, discharge our liabilities, and distribute any remaining assets to our stockholders. In that event if we failed to
create an adequate contingency reserve for payment of our expenses and liabilities, or if we otherwise were unable to pay our expenses
and liabilities and we became subject to bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, each stockholder could be held liable for payment to
our creditors for such stockholder’s pro rata share of unpaid amounts owed to creditors in excess of a contingency reserve, if any. The
liability of any stockholder would be limited, however, to the amounts previously distributed to such stockholder by us (or any
liquidating trust or trusts), including, possibly, the return of capital cash distribution of $1.50 per share paid on September 2, 2003.
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Accordingly, in such event a stockholder could be required to return all such distributions made to such stockholder. Moreover, in the
event taxes are payable, and a stockholder has paid taxes, on amounts previously received as a distribution, a repayment of all or a
portion of such amount could result in a stockholder incurring a net tax cost if the stockholder’s repayment of an amount previously
distributed does not cause a commensurate reduction in taxes payable. There can be no assurance that the amount of a contingency
reserve established by us would be adequate to cover our expenses and liabilities or that, if our cash and cash equivalents continue to
be depleted, our obligations and liabilities will not exceed our cash and cash equivalents.

Securities Class Action Claims Have Been Filed Against Us and Certain of Our Current and Former Officers and Directors.

On November 2, 2001, Timothy J. Fox filed a purported class action lawsuit against us, FleetBoston Robertson Stephens, Inc., the
lead underwriter of our April 1999 initial public offering, several other underwriters who participated in our initial public offering,
Steven J. Snyder, our then president and chief executive officer, and Thomas M. Donnelly, our then chief financial officer and
currently our president and chief financial officer. The lawsuit was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of
New York and has been assigned to the judge who is also the pretrial coordinating judge for substantially similar lawsuits involving
more than 300 other issuers. An amended class action complaint, captioned [n re Net Perceptions, Inc. Initial Public Qffering
Securities Litigation, 01 Civ. 9675 (SAS), was filed on April 22, 2002, expanding the basis for the action to include allegations
relating to our March 2000 follow-on public offering in addition to those relating to our initial public offering.

The amended complaint generally alleges that the defendants violated federal securities laws by not disclosing certain actions
taken by the underwriter defendants in connection with our initial public offering and our follow-on public offering. The amended
complaint alleges specifically that the underwriter defendants, with our direct participation and agreement and without disclosure
thereof, conspired to and did raise and increase their underwriters’ compensation and the market prices of our common stock
following our initial public offering and in our follow-on public offering by requiring their customers, in exchange for receiving
allocations of shares of our common stock sold in our initial public offering, to pay excessive commissions on transactions in other
securities, to purchase additional shares of our common stock in the initial public offering aftermarket at pre-determined prices above
the initial public offering price, and to purchase shares of our common stock in our follow-on public offering. The amended complaint
seeks unspecified monetary damages and certification of a plaintiff class consisting of all persons who acquired our common stock
between April 22, 1999 and December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs have since agreed to dismiss the claims against Mr. Snyder and Mr.
Donnelly without prejudice, in return for their agreement to toll any statute of limitations applicable to those claims; and those claims
have been dismissed without prejudice. On July 15, 2002, all of the issuer defendants filed a joint motion to dismiss the plaintiffs’
claims in all of the related cases. On February 19, 2003, the Court ruled against the Company on this motion.

A special committee of our board of directors has authorized the Company to negotiate a settlement of the pending claims
substantially consistent with a memorandum of understanding negotiated among class plaintiffs, issuer defendants and their insurers.
Any such settlement would be subject to approval by the Court. We believe that the allegations against the Company are without
merit. However, we are unable to predict the outcome or ultimate effect of this litigation.

Compliance with public company reporting requirements is costly, and we may seek to terminate the applicability of such
requirements to us and our common stock.

Our common stock is currently registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which requires that we, and our officers and
directors with respect to Section 16 of that Act, comply with certain public reporting and proxy statement requirements thereunder,
Compliance with these requirements is costly and time-consuming, and we will likely continue, at least in the near term, to be subject
to these requirements. However, our board of directors may in the future conclude that to curtail expenses thereby conserving cash to
minimize erosion of stockholder value, the registration of our common stock under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 should be
terminated. Termination of such registration may occur following our certification to the Securities and Exchange Commission that
there are fewer than 300 record hoiders of our common stock. As of March 31, 2003, there were 235 record holders of our common
stock, and thus it is likely that our common stock will be eligible for de-registration should the board of directors determine that such
action is necessary or otherwise in the best interests of the Company. Termination of such registration of our common stock would
reduce substantially the information required to be furnished by us to our stockholders and to the Securities and Commission and
would make certain provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, such as the short-swing profit recovery provisions of Section
16(b), the requirement of furnishing a proxy statement in connection with stockholders’ meetings pursuant to Section 14(a) and the
requirements of Rule 13e-3 under that Act with respect to “going private” transactions no longer applicable to us or our common
stock. Furthermore, if the registration of our common stock under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 were to be terminated, the
ability of “affiliates” of the Company and persons holding “restricted securities” of the Company to dispose of such securities
pursuant to Rule 144 or 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, may be impaired or eliminated. Also, as noted above, if
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registration of our common stock under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 were terminated our common stock would be delisted
from the Nasdaq National Market and/or the Nasdaq Small Cap Market, would no longer be eligible for Nasdaq trading and could not
be traded on the OTC Bulletin Board.

QOur inability to reach cash break-even could give rise to securities class action claims against us, which could deplete the
proceeds that could be distributed to stockholders.

Securities class action claims have been brought against companies in the past where the market price of the company’s securities
has fallen due to an inability of the company to achieve operational profitability. In addition, the Company was named in a purported
class action described in Item 3 of this report. Any such litigation could be very costly and divert our remaining resources from being
available for distribution to our stockholders. To the extent that we are unable to settle or resolve the currently pending litigation, and
we are not indemnified by other parties, or in the absence of sufficient insurance coverage, any adverse determination in this kind of
litigation could deplete our cash position, thereby reducing the cash available for distribution to stockholders if the Company were
liquidated and possibly making more difficult, or reducing the price obtainable in, a sale of or investment in the Company.

We may face intellectual property infringement claims that could be costly to resolve.

There has been a substantial amount of litigation in the software industry regarding intellectual property rights. It is possible that
third parties may claim that our products infringe their intellectual property rights, including under issued patents. Such claims may
result in our being involved in litigation. We could incur substantial costs to defend any claims relating to proprietary rights, which
would deplete our remaining cash. In addition, in all of our paid software license agreements, we generally indemnify our customers
against losses attributable to intellectual property infringement by our software. Should a third party bring a suit against a customer
alleging that the customer’s use of our software infringes its intellectual property rights, we could incur substantial costs in defending
and resolving the suit. If someone asserts a claim against us relating to proprietary technology or information, we might seek
settlement of such claim. We might not be able to agree to a settlement on reasonable terms, or at all. The failure to obtain a settlement
on acceptable terms could deplete our cash position, thereby reducing the cash available for distribution to stockholders if the
Company were liquidated and possibly making more difficult, or reducing the price obtainable in, a sale of or investment in the
Company.

We may be subject to potential product liability claims that could result incostly and time -consuming litigation.

Because our customers have used, and may continue to use, our products for important applications, errors or defects in, or other
performance problems with, our products could result in financial or other damages to our customers. Our customers could seek to
recover from us for such damages and we no longer maintain product liability insurance to cover such claims. Although our license
agreements typically contain provisions designed to limit our exposure to product liability claims, existing or future laws or
unfavorable judicial decisions could negate these limitation of liability provisions. Any product liability claim brought against us, even
if unsuccessful, would likely be time-consuming and costly. If someone asserts a claim against us relating to product liability, we
might seek settlement of such claim. We might not be able to agree to a settlement on reasonable terms, or at all. The failure to obtain
a settlement on acceptable terms could have the effect of decreasing or delaying cash distributions to stockholders if the Company
were liquidated and could make more difficult, or reduce the price obtainable in, a sale of or investment in the Company.

Provisions of our corporate organizational documents and rights agreement could delay or prevent a change of control, even if
it would be beneficial to our stockholders.

Various provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in
control and make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, even if doing so would be beneficial to our stockholders. In addition,
the rights issued under our rights agreement, as amended, may be a substantial deterrent to a person acquiring 15% or more of our
common stock without the approval of our board of directors. These provisions in our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and rights
agreement could reduce the price that investors might be willing to pay for shares of our common stock in the future and result in the
market price being lower than it would be without these provisions.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Through December 31, 2003, the majority of our recognized revenues were denominated in United States dollars and were
primarily from customers in the United States, and our exposure to foreign currency exchange rate changes has been immaterial. As
described elsewhere in this report, we are no longer actively marketing our products. Accordingly, we do not consider significant our
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate changes arising from revenues being denominated in foreign currencies.

Our historical exposure to market risk was otherwise limited to interest income sensitivity, which was affected by changes in the
general level of United States interest rates, particularly because the majority of our investments were in debt securities issued by
corporations and the United States government. All of our investments are now held in money market accounts in order to preserve
principal. Therefore, due to the conservative nature of our investments, our future interest income sensitivity is limited.

We do not have any derivative financial instruments and do not hold any instruments for trading purposes.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA -

The financial statements required by this item are included on pages F-1 through F-20 of this report. The supplementary financial
information required by this Item is included in the section of this report captioned “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Operating Resuits” under the heading “Selected Consolidated Quarterly Operating Results.”

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DlSAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

The Company’s management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on
such evaluation, the Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer has concluded that, as of the end of such period, the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed
by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizd and reported within the time
periods specified in applicable SEC rules and forms.

(b) Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.
There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-

15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the quarter ended December 31, 2003 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART I
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Intentionally omitted.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Summary Compensation Table
The following table sets forth information with respect to compensation we awarded and/or paid in 2003, 2002 and 2001 (or such
shorter period that the listed person served as an executive officer of the Company) for services to us by our current President, and our

three other executive officers whose total salary and bonus for 2003 exceeded $100,000. We refer to these officers as our named
executive officers in other parts of this report.

Long-Term
Compensation
Awards
Number of Shares
Aanual Compensation of Common Stock All Other
Name and Position(s) Year Salary($) Bonus($) Underlying Options Compeasation($)

Thomas M. Donnelly 2003 225,000 210,000 — 86,000 (1)
President and Chief 2002 180,000 — — 86,000 (1)

Financial Officer 2001 177,507 50,000 321,204 —

James S. Hanlon (2) 2003 137,500 — — —

Vice President Engineering 2002 150,000 — — —

2001 130,780 31,273 89,400 —

Teresa J. Dery 2003 100,000 12,500 — —

Corporate Counsel Secretary

Donald C. Peterson (3) 2003 119,744 — — 200,000 (3)

President and Chief 2002 200,000 — — —

Executive Officer 2001 121,282 43,750 750,000 —

(1) Represents forgiveness of principal on a loan with the Company. See Certain Relationships and Related Transactions beginning on
page 34.

(2) Mr. Hanlon’s employment with the Company terminated on January 15, 2004. Prior to this date, Mr. Hanlon served as Vice
President of Engineering. Mr. Hanlon received $37,500 of severance benefits in 2004 pursuant to an agreement with the
Company.

(3) Mr. Peterson’s employment with the Company terminated on August 5, 2003. Prior to this date, Mr. Peterson served as President
and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Peterson also resigned as a director effective August 6, 2003. Mr. Peterson received $200,000 of
severance benefits in 2003 pursuant to his employment agreement with the Company and we are continuing to provide him with
health insurance benefits through August 6, 2004, or until Mr. Peterson is eligible to receive such benefits through a new
employer.

Option Grants in Last Year

We did not make any grants of stock options or stock appreciation rights to the named executive officers during 2003.
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Aggregated Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Option Values at December 31,2003

The following table provides information concerning option exercises by the named executive officers during the year ended
December 31, 2003 and the number and value of unexercised options held by each of the named executive officers at December 31,
2003.

Number of Value of Unexercised
Securities Underlying In-The-Money
Unexercised Options at Optioas at
Shares Acquired December 31, 2003(#)(2) December 31, 2003(3)(3)
Name on Exercise (#} Value Realized ($}(1) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisat
Thomas M. Donnelly 212,368 108,613 126,285 623,093 13,212 64,644
James S. Hanlon 48,235 32,103 35,150 200,729 5,975 34,124
Teresa J Dery 5,031 3,392 3,873 17,210 658 2,926

Donald C. Peterson —

(1) The value realized on option exercises is calculated based on the fair market value per share of common stock on the date of
exercise less the applicable exercise price.

(2) Options granted under our 1996 Stock Plan are immediately exercisable for all the option shares, but any shares purchased under
those options will be subject to repurchase by us at the original exercise price paid per share, upon the optionee’s cessation of
service, prior to the vesting of those shares. Options granted under our 1999 Equity Incentive Plan and 2000 Stock Plan may be
exercised only when, and to the extent, vested.

(3) The value of unexercised “in-the-money” options held at December 31, 2003 represents the total gain which would be realized if
all of the “in-the-money” options held at December 31, 2003 were exercised, and is determined by multiplying the number of
shares of Common Stock underlying the options by the difference between $.40, which was the closing price per share of our
Common Stock on the Nasdaq National Market on December 31, 2003, and the applicable per share option exercise price. An
option is “in-the-money” if the fair market value of the underlying shares exceeds the exercise price of the option.

Change in Control Arrangements/Employment Agreements

Our 1999 Equity Incentive Plan, in which our named executive officers participate, and our 2000 Stock Plan, under which certain
of our current named executive officers received options prior to becoming executive officers, provide for accelerated vesting of
options to purchase shares of common stock granted under the plans in connection with certain changes in control of the Company. In
addition, in the event that options granted under the plans are assumed by the acquiror in a change in control, the options may
accelerate if the optionee’s employment is involuntarily terminated within 18 months following the change in control event or, subject
to the limitations set forth in the plans, the optionee resigns from a position with the acquiror. Our 1996 Stock Plan, in which some of
our named executive officers participate, provides for the accelerated lapsing of repurchase rights with respect to shares of common
stock acquired upon exercise of options granted under the plan in connection with certain changes in control of the Company.

Our named executive officers (other than those named executive officers who are no longer employed by the Company), are
eligible to participate in our Change in Control Severance Plan. Under the Change in Control Severance Plan, if, within 18 months
after a change in control of the Company, an officer’s employment is involuntarily terminated other than for cause or voluntarily or
involuntarily terminated following a material change in the officer’s responsibilities, cash compensation or place of employment, we
will pay the officer severance benefits equal to six months of base salary.

We have entered into a severance agreement with Thomas M. Donnelly, our President and Chief Financial Officer. Pursuant to the
terms of this agreement, if Mr. Donnelly’s employment is terminated without cause, or due to his inability to perform his duties due to
illness for a period of 90 consecutive days or more, we will pay Mr. Donnelly severance benefits equal to twelve months of base
salary. Also under the terms of this agreement, if, within 18 months after a change in control of the Company, Mr. Donnelly’s
employment is involuntarily terminated other than for cause or voluntarily or involuntarily terminated following a material change in
Mr. Donnelly’s responsibilities, cash compensation or place of employment, we will pay Mr. Donnelly severance benefits equal to
twelve months of base salary.

Pursuant to an employment agreement with Donald C. Peterson, our former President and Chief Executive Officer, during 2003,
we made severance payments of $200,000 to Mr. Peterson in connection with the termination of his employment on August 5, 2003.




Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Neither Messrs. Kennedy and Lansing nor Ms. Winblad, each of whom served as a member of the compensation committee during
2003, is currently or has been, at any time since our formation, one of our officers or employees. None of our executive officers serves
as a member of the board of directors or compensation committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving as a
member of our board of directors or c ompensation committee.

Director Compensation

We do not currently provide our directors with cash compensation for their services as members of the board of directors, although
directors are reimbursed for some expenses in connection with attendance at board and committee meetings. Directors who are also
our employees are eligible to participate in our 1999 Equity Incentive Plan. None of the members of our current board of directors is
an employee of the Company. Non-employee directors are eligible to participate in our 1999 Non-Employee Director Option Plan,
which was amended in April 2001. Pursuant to the terms of the 1999 Non-Employee Director Option Plan, each non-employee
director receives an automatic option grant to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock upon his or her initial election or appointment
to the board, and, at each Annual Meeting thereafter, receives an automatic option grant to purchase 15,000 shares of common stock.
From time to time, non-employee directors may also receive discretionary option grants under our 1999 Non-Employee Director
Option Plan. During 2002, the board formed a special committee of directors to act with the full authority of the board on matters
concerning certain litigation brought against the Company, among other defendants, related to its 1999 1PO and 2000 follow-on public
offering. Mr. Kennedy is a member of the committee, and Mr. Peterson was a member of this committee until he resigned from the
board on August 6, 2003. Mr. Kennedy is compensated at a rate of $1,500 per day for specific activities involving this special
committee. During 2003, Mr. Kennedy received $3,000 of compensation related to this matter.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

[ntentionally omitted.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

In December 2000, Thomas M. Donnelly, our President and Chief Financial Officer, entered into a full recourse secured
promissory note and security agreement in favor of the Company in connection with a loan from the Company to Mr. Donnelly of up
to $300,000 to be made to Mr. Donnelly solely to pay federal income tax owed by Mr. Donnelly as a result of his exercise in March
2000 of an option to purchase shares of Common Stock. In April 2001, $258,000 was loaned to Mr. Donnelly pursuant to the
promissory note. The note accrued interest at 8% and was due and payable in 2004. On April 1st of each year, commencing in 2002,
that Mr. Donnelly remained continuously employed by the Company, one-third of the original principal and accrued interest was
forgiven. The largest amount of indebtedness outstanding under the note during 2003 was $107,500. As of April 1, 2004, the note was
completely forgiven.

We have entered into a severance agreement with Thomas M. Donnelly, our President and Chief Financial Officer. Pursuant to the
terms of this agreement, if Mr. Donnelly’s employment is terminated without cause, or due to his inability to perform his duties due to
illness for a period of 90 consecutive days or more, we will pay Mr. Donnelly severance benefits equal to twelve months of base
salary. Also under the terms of this agreement, if, within 18 months after a change in control of the Company, Mr. Donnelly’s
employment is involuntarily terminated other than for cause or voluntarily or involuntarily terminated following a material change in
Mr. Donnelly’s responsibilities, cash compensation or place of employment, we will pay Mr. Donnelly severance benefits equal to

twelve months of base salary.

We have also entered into an indemnification agreement with all of our officers and directors.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

[ntentionally omitted.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) 1. Financial Statements
The financial statements filed as part of this report are listed on the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page F-1.
2. Financial Statement Schedules
All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission are
not required. The information required to be set forth therein is not applicable or is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or

notes thereto included in this report.

3. Exhibits

Exhibit
Numlbgr Description
2.1 Patent Purchase Agreement, dated December 30, 2003, between Thalveg Data Flow LLC and Net Perceptions, Inc., as

amended on March 31, 2004 (1)

3.1(a) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (2). ‘

3.1(b) Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (3)

32 . Amended and Restated Bylaws as amended through August 5, 2003 (4).

4.1 Amended and Restated Investor’s Rights Agreement, dated December 18, 1997, among Net Percepnons Inc. and the
investors and founders named therein, as amended (2).

4.2 Specimen common stock certificate (2).

4.3 Specimen common stock certificate (including Rights Agreement Legend) (5).

4.4 Rights Agreement between Net Perceptions, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, as Rights Agent (6).

4.5 Amendment No. [ to Rights Agreement dated as of December 22, 2003 (7).

4.6 Form of Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (attached as Exhibit A to the Rights
Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.4 hereto) (6).

47 Form of Rights Certificate (attached as Exhibit B to the Rights Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.4 hereto) (6).

10.1* Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into between Net Perceptions, Inc. and its directors and officers (2).

10.2* 1996 Stock Plan (2).

10.3* 1999 Equity Incentive Plan (2).

10.4* Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Option Plan, as amended through April 2, 2001 (8).

10.5% Employee Stock Purchase Plan (2).

10.8* 2000 Stock Plan (9).

10.9* Change in Control Severance Plan and Summary Plan Description (2).

10.11*  Severance Agreement, dated as of November 9, 2001, between Net Perceptions, Inc. and Thomas M. Donnelly(10).

10.12 Full Recourse Secured Promissory Note and Security Agreement, dated December 7, 2000, entered into by Thomas M.
Donnelly in favor of Net Perceptions, Inc. (11)

211 List of Subsidiaries.
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants.

30 Certification of chief executive officer and chief financial officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules Rule 13(a)-14(a) and
15(a)-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

321 Certification of the chief executive officer and chief financial officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Represents a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
(1) Incorporated by reference to Net Perceptions’ Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 1, 2004,

(2) Incorporated by reference to Net Perceptions’ Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-71919).
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3)
“
)
©)
(7
®
9

[ncorporated by reference to Net Perceptions’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31,2002,
Incorporated by reference to Net Perceptions’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2003.
Incorporated by reference to Net Perceptions’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2001.
Incorporated by reference to Net Perceptions” Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed June 6, 2001,

Incorporated by reference to Net Perceptions’ Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 23, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to Net Perceptions’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Net Perceptions’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2000.

(10) Incorporated by reference to Net Perceptions’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001.

(11) Incorporated by reference to Net Perceptions’ Amendment No. | to its Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2002.

(b) Reportson Form 8-K

The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K under Items S and 12 on October 21, 2003 in connection with a press release

announcing (a) that the board of directors had adopted a Plan of Complete Liquidation and Dissolution and (b) the Company’s
financial results for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2003.

The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K under Item 5 on December 23, 2003 in connection with a press release

announcing that the Company had entered into an amendment to its Rights Agreement.

The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K under Item 5 on December 31, 2003 announcing that it had entered into a Patent

Purchase Agreement with Thalveg Data Flow LLC for the sale of its patent portfolio.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
NET PERCEPTIONS, INC.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors
and Stockholders of
Net Perceptions, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, of
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Net
Perceptions, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We.conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has significantly curtailed operations and anticipates
that its board of directors will continue to review and consider possible actions or transactions which might be available to resolve the
Company’s future in the near term.

As discussed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” and ceased amortizing goodwill on January 1, 2002.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
April 1, 2004




NET PERCEPTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31,
2003 2002
ASSETS
Current assets: :
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,932 § 39,729
Short-term investments — 23,230
Accounts receivable, net 355 389
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 481 627
Total current assets 12,768 63,975
Property and equipment, net — 1,096
Other assets ‘ 35 725
Total assets $§ 12803 $§_ 65796
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY ‘
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ — 3 52
Accrued liabilities 751 1,853
Deferred revenue 380 750
Accrued restructuring costs 37 4,289
Total current liabilities 1,168 6,944
Deferred Rent : — 510
Total liabilities . 1,168 7,454
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 9 and 11) Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock — $.0001 par value; 5,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding —_ —
Common stock — $.0001 par value; 100,000 shares authorized; 28,145 and 27,332 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively 2 2
Additional paid-in capital 233,761 275,053
Accumulated other comprehensive income — 122
Accumulated deficit (222,128) _ (216.83%5)
Total stockholders’ equity . 11,635 58.342
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity : $ 12803 § 65796

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.




NET PERCEPTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Revenues:
Product $ 962 § 1,703 § 2,979
Service and maintenance 1.622 3.541 7,535
Total revenues 2,584 5,244 10,514
Cost of revenues:
Product 12 292 943
Service and maintenance 755 2.101 5,143
Total cost of revenues 767 2,393 6,086
Gross margin 1.817 2.851 4,428
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 1,347 4,550 15,215
Research and development 2,112 5,933 10,572
General and administrative 2,261 2,819 6,198
Lease abandonment expense — — 225
Restructuring related charges and impairments 2,251 768 15,551
Amortization of intangibles — 110 9,650
Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles — 6,546 75,298
Total operating expenses 7971 20,726 132,709
Loss from operations (6,154) _ (17.875) __(128.28D)
Other income (expense):
Interest income 610 2,108 4,494
Interest expense — (24) (88)
Other income (expense) 229 (943) 77
Total other income, net 861 1,141 4,483
Net loss § (5001 §(1673) § (123,79
Basic and diluted net loss per share S ) ) & (459)
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share 27,683 27216 26,951

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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NET PERCEPTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other Total Comprehensive
Common Stock Paidin Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’ Income
Shares Amount Capita] Income (Loss) Deficit Equity (Loss)
Balance, December 31, 2000 26,870 $2 $274,458 $361 $ (76,303) $ 198,518
Exercise of stock options 115 — 59 — — 59 $—
Repurchase of unvested
common stock (2) — (6) — — 6) —
Compensation relating to
stock options. — — 230 — — 230 —

Issuance of common stock

under employee stock

purchase plan 146 — 128 — — 128 —
Change in unrealized gain

(loss) on available-for-sale

investments — — — 276 — 276 276
Net loss — = - — — (123,798) _(123.798) (123.798)
Balance, December 31, 2001 27,129 2 - 274,869 637 (200,101) 75,407 (123.522)
Exercise of stock options 136 — 64 —_ — 64 —
Repurchase of unvested

common stock (1) — q)) — — n —
Compensation relating to

stock options — — 54 — — 54 —
Issuance of common stock

under employee stock

purchase plan 68 — 67 — — 67 —
Change in unrealized gain

(loss) on available-for-sale

investments — — — (515) — (515) (515)
Net loss — p— — = (16,374) (16.374) (16.374)
Balance, December 31, 2002 27,332 2 275,053 122 (216,835) 58,342 {17,249
Exercise of stock options 801 — 894 — — 894 —
Issuance of common stock

under employee stock

purchase plan 12 — 12 — — 12 —_
Change in unrealized gain

(loss) on available-for-sale .

investments — — — (122) — (122) (122)
Cash Distribution to

Stockholders — — (42,198) — — (42,198)

Net loss — — — — (5293) (5,293) (5.293)
Balance, December 31, 2003 28,145 52 $233.761 = $ 11,635 85415

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.




NET PERCEPTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year End cember
2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (5293) $ (16,734) $ (123,798)
Reconciliation of net loss to net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 484 2,196 13,528
Provision for doubtful accounts (54) 79 1,051
Lease abandonment expense — — 225
Compensation expense related to stock options . — 42 230
Restructuring related charges and impairments ) ) 2,251 768 15,551
Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles — 6,546 75,298
Amortization of premiums (discounts) on investments 183 372 (135)
Loss on disposal of assets — — 22
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 88 841 3,979
Royalties receivable — 671
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 146 1,674 (462)
Other assets 690 457 613
Accounts payable (52) (262) (1,112)
Accrued expenses (6,993) 4,619) (5,957)
Deferred revenue (370) (1,085) (1,908)
Other liabilities (510) (67) (92)
Net cash used in operating activities (9.430) (9.792) (22.296)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of short-term investments and marketable securities (16,121)  (47,555) (132,886)
Sales and maturities of short-term investments and marketable securities 39,046 82,114 154,461
Purchases of property and equipment — — (248)
Net cash provided by investing activities 22,925 34.559 21,327
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of stock under employee stock purchase plan 12 67 128
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants, net of stock repurchases 894 63 53
Cash distribution to stockholders (42,198) — —
Principal payments under capital lease obligations and notes payable — [CIA) (679
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (41.292) 33 (498)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (27,797) 24,800 (1,467)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 39,729 14,929 16.396
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $. 11932 § 397290 § 14929
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Interest paid $ — 3 24§ 88

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



NET PERCEPTIONS, INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

1. Organization

Net Perceptions, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in Delaware on July 3, 1996. The Company developed and marketed
software solutions that enabled its customers to interact more intelligently with their customers. On October 21, 2003, the Company
announced that its board of directors had unanimously approved a plan of complete liquidation and dissolution, referred to as the plan
of liquidation. The plan of liquidation was submitted to the Company’s stockholders for approval and adoption at a special meeting of
stockholders originally scheduled for March 12, 2004, which was adjourned and reconvened on March 23, 2004. At the reconvened °
special meeting, the proposal to approve and adopt the plan of liquidation did not receive the affirmative vote of a majority of the
28,145,338 shares of common stock outstanding as of the record date for the special meeting required to approve the proposal. Of the
15,773,134 shares represented in person or by proxy at the reconvened special meeting, 13,810,233 shares voted in favor of the
proposal, 1,925,694 shares voted against and 37,207 shares abstained.

The Company has significantly curtailed business operations and at April 1, 2004 had two employees. The Company anticipates
that its board of directors will continue to review and consider possible actions or transactions which might be available to resolve the
Company’s future in the near term in the best interest of all stockholders. These could include, among other actions or transactions,
further sales or licenses of assets, an acquisition of or investment in the Company or other extraordinary transaction, adopting a new
plan of complete liquidation and dissolution and seeking stockholder approval therefor and/or changes in the composition of the

Company’s board of directors.

The Company has historically been subject to risks and uncertainties common to technology-based companies, including rapid
technological change, growth of electronic commerce, dependence on principal products and third-party technology, new product
development and acceptance, actions of competitors, dependence on key personnel, lengthy sales cycle, availability of sufficient
capital and a limited operating history.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements include accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant inter-
company accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Revenues and identifiable assets attributable to the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries were less than 10% of their respective totals. The equity method of accounting was used to account for the Company’s
equity investment in a Japanese joint venture (see Note 10).

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts therein. Management’s estimates
are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Management’s estimates and assumptions are evaluated on an on-going basis. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making
estimates, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenues in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA™)
Statement of Position (“SOP”) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” as amended by SOP 98-4, “Deferral of the Effective Date of a
Provision of SOP 97-2"" and SOP 98-9, “Modification of SOP 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition with Respect to Certain
Transactions” and in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104,
“Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements.” The Company derives revenues from software licenses, software maintenance and
professional services. Maintenance includes telephone and Web-based technical support, bug fixes and rights to unspecified upgrades
on a when-and-if available basis. Professional services include project planning and management, implementation and testing, data
analysis, data warehousing, user and partner training, consulting, product hosting and ongoing customer support.
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For software arrangements that include multiple elements (e.g., software products, and/or maintenance or services), the Company
allocates the total arrangement fee using the residual method. Under the residual method, the fair value of the undelivered
maintenance and service elements, as determined by vendor-specific objective evidence, is deferred and the remaining (residual)
arrangement fee is recognized as software product revenue. [n software arrangements in which the Company does not have vendor-
specific objective evidence of undelivered elements, revenue is deferred until the earlier of when vendor-specific objective evidence is
determined for the undelivered elements or when all elements have been delivered.

Revenues from license fees are recognized when a non-cancelable agreement has been executed, the product has been shipped or
electronically delivered, there are no uncertainties surrounding product acceptance, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection of
the related receivable is considered probable. If the fee due from the customer is not fixed or determinable, revenues are recognized as
payments become due from the customer. If the Company does not consider collection to be probable, then revenues are recognized
when the fee is collected.

License revenues related to license terms less than twenty-four months are recognized ratably over the term of the license period. -
When the Company offers products and services on a hosted basis, up front set-up fees are deferred and recognized ratably over the
estimated service period.

Revenues allocable to maintenance are recognized ratably over the term of the agreement. The Company evaluates arrangements
that include professional and/or data processing services to determine whether those services are essential to the functionality of other
elements of the arrangement. If professional services are considered essential, revenues from the arrangement are recognized using
contract accounting, generally on a percentage-of-completion basis. When the Company does not consider the professional services to
be essential, revenues allocable to the services are recognized as they are performed.

Under general contract terms, the Company includes an indemnification clause in its software licensing agreement that indemnifies
the licensee against liability and damages arising from any claims of patent, copyright, trademark or trade secret infringement by the
Company’s software. The Company has incurred insignificant costs as a result of this type of indemnification clause and the Company
does not maintain a product warranty liability related to such indemnification clauses.

Concentrations of credit risk and significant customers

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist primarily of accounts receivable. The Company
grants credit to customers in the ordinary course of business. To minimize credit risk, ongoing credit evaluations are performed. Three
customers accounted for 14%, 13% and 10% of total 2003 revenues and one customer accounted for 84% of accounts receivable at
December 31, 2003. One customer accounted for 22% of total 2002 revenues and three customers accounted for 33%, 27% and 20%
of accounts receivable at December 31, 2002. Three customers accounted for 12%, 11% and 10% of total 2001 revenues.

Cash equivalents, short-term investments and marketable securities

Cash equivalents, short-term investments and marketable securities consist principally of commercial paper, government agency
notes and money market funds. Cash equivalents are all highly liquid temporary cash investments purchased with original maturities
of 90 days or less. The Company determines the appropriate classification of short-term investments and marketable securities at the
time of purchase and reevaluates such designation as of each balance sheet date. As of December 31, 2003, all of the Company’s cash
was held in money market accounts and its short-term investments and marketable securities value was $0. Available-for-sale
securities are stated at fair market value with unrealized holding gains or losses recorded as a separate component of stockholders’
equity.

The Company’s debt and marketable equity securities were as follows:

Aggregate Unrealized  Unrealized

Cost Fair Value gains losses

As of December 31, 2002:
Government agencies $ 17,258 § 17,321 $ 63 53—
Corporate debt 5.850 5.909 59 —
§ 23108 § 23,230 $ 122 $—
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Fairvalue of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments, which include cash equivalents, short-term investments, marketable
securities, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and capital lease obligations, approximate their fair values at
December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the individual assets; or the shorter of the estimated useful lives or underlying lease term (in the case of
leasehold improvements and capital lease equipment). Estimated useful lives generally range from three to ten years. At December 31,
2003, substantially all of the Company’s property and equipment had been disposed, with the balance being fully depreciated at
December 31, 2003.

Long-lived assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment of Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” which was effective for
the Company January 1, 2002, the Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss shall be recognized only if the carrying amount of a
long-lived asset (asset group) is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset (asset group) is
not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the
asset (asset group). That assessment shall be based on the carrying amount of the asset (asset group) at the date it is tested for
recoverability, whether in use or under development. An impairment loss shall be measured as the amount by which the carrying
amount of a long-lived asset (asset group) exceeds its fair value.

Other assets
Other assets consist primarily of operating lease deposits.
Research and development

Research and development expenditures, which include software development costs, are expensed as incurred. SFAS No. 86,
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to Be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed,” requires the capitalization of certain
software development costs once technological feasibility is established, which the Company defines as the completion of a working
model. To date, the period between achieving technological feasibility and the general availability of such software has been short and
software development costs qualifying for capitalization have been insignificant. Accordingly, the Company has not capitalized any
software development costs. .

Income taxes

The Company calculates income taxes in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,”
which requires the use of the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Income taxes are deferred for all temporary differences
between the financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are recorded using the enacted tax rates
scheduled by tax law to be in effect when the temporary differences are expected to settle or be realized. Deferred tax assets are
reduced by a valuation allowance to the extent that utilization is considered uncertain.

Advertising expense

The Company recognizes advertising expense as incurred. Advertising expense has been insignificant since inception.




Net loss per share

Net loss per share is computed under SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Basic net loss per share is computed using the
weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding, excluding shares of common stock subject to repurchase. Such
shares of common stock subject to repurchase aggregated 0, 1, and 10 shares at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively (see
Note 9). Diluted net loss per share does not differ from basic net loss per share since potential shares of common stock from
conversion of preferred stock, stock options and warrants and outstanding shares of common stock subject to repurchase are anti-
dilutive for all periods presented. Options to purchase 2,029, 2,757, and 3,719 shares of the Company’s common stock were
outstanding as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and could potentially dilute earnings per share in future periods.

Foreign currency translation

All assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries and affiliates are translated from local currencies to United States
dollars at period end rates of exchange, while revenues and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates during the period.
The functional currency for each of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries and affiliates is the respective local currency. Gains or losses
resulting from foreign currency transactions (transactions denominated in a currency other than the entity’s local currency) are
included in the consolidated statement of operations and are not significant.

Comprehensive income (loss)

Comprebensive income (loss), as defined by SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” includes net loss and items
defined as other comprehensive income. SFAS No. 130 requires that items defined as other comprehensive income (loss), such as
foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on certain investments in debt securities, be separately
classified in the financial statements. Such disclosures are included in the consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity and
comprehensive loss.

Stock-based compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation arrangements in accordance with the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and complies with the disclosure provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure-an amendment of Financial Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 123",

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123. For purposes of the pro forma disclosures below, the
estimated fair value of the Company’s stock options is amortized to expense over the options’ vesting period. Had compensation cost
for the Company’s stock options been recognized based on the fair value at the grant date consistent with the provisions of SFAS No.
123, the Company’s net income (loss) would have been adjusted to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001

Net loss, as reported $ (5,293) § (16,734) § (123,798)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net loss — 54 230
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based

method for all awards, net of related tax effects (1,.274) (2,358) {4,254)
Pro forma net loss $(6.597) £ (19.038) § (127.8%)
Basic and diluted net loss per share:

As reported £ (019§ (06]) § (459

Pro forma $ (024§ (0.69) § (4.74)

Compensation expense for pro forma purposes is reflected over the vesting period. The fair value of each option grant is estimated
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively: dividend yield of 0% for option grants in all years; risk-free interest rates of 3.0%, 3.9% and 4.6%;
expected lives of 5 years for option grants in all years; and volatility factors of 50%, 70% and 97%. The weighted-average fair value
of options adjustments during 2003, 2002 and 2001 using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model was $0.16, $0.77 and $1.24 per
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share, respectively.
Recently issued accounting pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No: (“EIN") 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51”. FIN No. 46 requires certain variable interest entities, or VIEs, to be consolidated by the
primary beneficiary of the entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest,
or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from
other parties. In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46-R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”, which represents a
revision to FIN No. 46. The provisions of FIN No. 46-R are effective for interestsin VIEs as of the first interim or annual period
ending after December 15, 2003. The Company currently has no contractual relationship or other business relationship with a variable
interest entity and therefore the adoption of FIN No. 46 or FIN No. 46-R did not have a material effect on its consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

3. Financial statement components
Certain balance sheet components consist of the following:

Rollforward of the allowance for doubtful accounts:

Batance December 31,2000 § 1,594

Provision 1,051
Write-offs (2,995)
Recoveries 499
Balance, December 31, 2001 149
Provision 79
Write-offs 1s1)
Recoveries ___ 8
Balance, December 31, 2002 85
Provision (54)
Write-offs 3
Recoveries 2

Balance, December 31,2003 §____30

Property and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,
2003 2002

Computer hardware $ 128 $ 3,719
Leasehold improvements — 302
Purchased computer software 458 603
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 82 1,088
668 5,712
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (668) _ (4.616)
§_— 5§ 109

Depreciation and amortization expense was $484, $1,940 and $3,434 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
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2
Accrued liabilities consist of the following:
December 31,
2003 2002
Accrued wages and benefits $2258% 614
Accrued lease abandonment costs — 383
Other accrued expenses 526 856
£ 751 3 L8NS

4. Acquisition of Knowledge Discovery One

In February 2000, the Company acquired Knowledge Discovery One, Inc. (“KD1”), a developer and marketer of advanced data
analysis solutions for retailers. In this transaction, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of KD1 in exchange for 1,969
shares of its common stock, and KD1 became the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary. The value of the Company’s common stock
issued for the KD1 acquisition was determined by the average of the Company’s stock price over a period ending shortly before the
announcement of the acquisition. The Company also assumed all outstanding options to purchase KD1 common stock. The Company
reserved 266 shares of its common stock for issuance upon the exercise of these options. The KD1 acquisition was accounted for
under the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, the total purchase price of $117,815 was allocated to the acquired assets and
liabilities assumed at their fair market values as of the transaction closing date, and the Company’s consolidated statements of
operations do not include any revenues or expenses related to the acquisition prior to the closing date. Such acquired assets included
intangible assets related to acquired technology (three year useful life), customer list (three-year useful life), workforce (four-year
useful life) and goodwill (three-year useful life) of $4,000, $3,000, $1,000 and $110,755, respectively. The Company also assumed net
liabilities of approximately $940.

At March 31, 2001, the Company performed an impairment assessment of the goodwill and other intangible assets recorded in
connection with the acquisition of KDI as provided by APB No. 17, “Intangible Assets” and SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.” The assessment was performed primarily due to
lower than expected revenues in the first quarter of 2001 (product revenues declined 87% from the same period in 2000 and 72% from
the fourth quarter of 2000) and a downward revision in the first quarter of 2001 of the Company’s internal revenue projections based
on the general economic conditions in the information technology sector, combined with changes in valuation models for technology
companies, a continued decline in the Company’s first quarter 2001 stock price and its March 2001 plan of restructuring. As a result of
its review, the Company recorded a $75.3 million impairment charge to reduce goodwill and other intangible assets to their estimated
fair values. The charge was determined based upon the Company’s estimated discounted cash flows over the estimated remaining
useful life of the goodwill and other intangible assets, a terminal value at the end of this estimated life and using a discount rate of
40%. The assumptions supporting the cash flows, including the discount rate and estimated terminal value were determined using
management’s best estimates available at the time the impairment assessment was made. The estimated cash flows were consistently
based on the Company’s internal operating plan. The discount rate was based upon the historical time-weighted returns for venture
capital type investments for the ten-year period ended December 31, 2000 — a rate considered appropriate given the Company’s
revenue levels at that time. The estimated terminal value was based on the Company’s recent revenue multiple based on trailing
twelve months revenues as objectively observed from the Company’s then market capitalization.

In conjunction with the adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company completed the
transitional impairment test of goodwill as of January 1, 2002 and it was determined that the carrying value of goodwill was not
impaired. At December 31, 2002, the Company performed its annual impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets.
As a result of this impairment test, the Company concluded that an impairment existed and that the impairment occurred due to events
and changes in circumstances, which included lower than expected fourth quarter revenues and a revised 2003 forecast. As a result of
the December 2002 impairment assessment, the Company recorded a $6.5 million impairment charge to reduce goodwill and other
intangible assets to zero value. The charge was determined based upon the Company’s estimated discounted cash flows over the
estimated remaining useful life of the goodwill and other intangible assets, a terminal value at the end of this estimated life and using a
discount rate of 35%. The assumptions supporting the cash flows, including the discount rate and estimated terminal value were
determined using management’s best estimates available at the time the impairment assessment was made.
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5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets— Adoption of SFAS No. 141 and No. 142

Effective January 1, 2002, in accordance with SFAS No. 141 and No. 142, the Company ceased amortizing goodwill and certain
other identified intangible assets that had a net book value of approximately $6,500 as of January 1, 2002. The adoption of these
statements resulted in the Company not recognizing $3,100 of amortization expense for 2002 that would have been recognized had the
old standards been in effect. The Company’s net loss for 2001 included $9,317 in amortization expense relating to goodwill and
certain other identified intangible assets that are no longer being amortized.

The following table presents the impact of these statements on net loss and net loss per share, as if they had been in effect for all
periods presented.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Reported net loss $ (5,293) § (16,734) § (123,798)
Addback: Goodwill amortization — — 9317
Adjusted net loss $§ (5293) § (16,734) § (114481)
Basic and diluted earnings per share:

Reported net loss $ (0.19) § (061 § (4.59)
Goodwill amortization — — 0.34
Adjusted net loss $ (019 & (061 § (4.25)

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill and other intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 are
as follows:

Goodwill Other intangibles Total
Balance at December 31, 2000 $ 87,236 $ 4,958 $ 92,194
Amortization expense 9,317) (777) (10,094)
Impairment (71,406) (3,.892) (75,298)
Balance at December 31, 2001 6,513 289 6,802
Amortization expense -— (256) (256)
[mpairment (6.513) (33) (6,546)
Balance at December 31, 2002 h — g — by —

6. Restructuring related charges and impairments

During 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company instituted certain restructuring plans to better align its cost structure with its business
outlook and general economic conditions. Under the restructuring plans, the Company recorded restructuring related charges totaling
$2.3 million, $768,000 and $15.6 million during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In March 2001 the Company reduced its workforce by approximately 46%, or 124 positions throughout the organization, and
recorded a charge of $13,920 to reorganize the Company and exit certain facilities in various United States and international locations.
This $13,920 charge included $10,200 related to facility consolidation, $1,190 of employee termination costs and $2,530 of losses on
the disposal of assets and other restructuring charges. During the third quarter of 2001, the Company reduced its workforce by 45
employees and recorded an additional $1,771 restructuring related charge. This $1,771 charge included $878 for estimated losses on
the disposal of fixed assets, $449 for leasehold write-offs related to facility consolidation and $444 for employee severance payments.
During the fourth quarter of 2001, the total restructuring charge was decreased by $140 to reflect the actual costs of exiting certain
marketing activities in connection with the restructuring.

In the first quarter of 2002 the Company further reduced its workforce by 15% or 15 positions, and recorded $367 in related
employee termination costs. During the second quarter of 2002 the Company recorded restructuring related charges of $401, of which
$139 related to employee termination costs due to a reduction in workforce by 18 positions or 21%, $291 represented the write-down
of certain fixed assets and $(29) was a reversal of previously recorded restructuring related charges resulting from revised estimates of
other costs.

The Company recorded restructuring related charges of $1,200 in the first quarter of 2003 related primarily to the closure of
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operations in three satellite offices, employee termination costs due to a reduction of workforce by 22 positions and $413 for estimated
losses on the disposal of fixed assets. The Company recorded additional restructuring related charges of $1,051 in the third quarter of
2003 related primarily to the termination of three real estate lease agreements, and employee termination costs due to a reduction of
workforce by 12 positions. The aggregate cash payments for the lease terminations were approximately $5.4 million.

The following table presents a summary of the Company’s real estate related contractual obligations as of December 31, 2003:

2004 Total

Operating leases % 8 § 89
Executed sublease agreements (59) _ (59)
Net contractual cash obligation 3 30 § 30

Operating lease obligations relate to one remaining vacated facility in San Francisco, CA, the majority of which is sublet. The
Company is actively seeking to sublease the remaining vacant portion of this office space and is also attempting to negotiate the
termination of this lease. The Company currently occupies approximately 1,500 square feet of office space pursuant to a month-to-
month lease in Edina, Minnesota. As of December 31, 2003, the Company estimated total future sublease income of $59 pursuant to

existing sublease arrangements.

The following table presents a simmary of the restructuring related activities and accrued restructuring charges as of December
31,2003:

Employee Fixed
Lease Severance Asset
Commitments and Disposals
and Related Termination and Other
Iterns Costs Subtotal Costs Total
Restructuring Related Charges and Impairments Net of Reversal $10,649 $ 1,634 $12,283 § 3,268 $15,551
Restructuring Payments (2,233) (1,523)  (3,756) (195) (3,951)
Sublease Income and proceeds from the Sale of Fixed Assets 280 - 280 261 541
Non-Cash Asset Disposals-and Deferred Rent Write-Off (1.800) - (1,.800) _{(2.908) _(4.708)
Accrued Restructuring as of December 31, 2001 $ 6,896 £ 111 $7007 § 426 $ 7433
Restructuring Related Charges and Impairments - 506 506 262 768
Restructuring Payments (4,024) 547y (4,571 (66) (4,637)
Sublease Income and Proceeds from the Sale of Fixed Assets 1,299 - 1,299 68 1,367
Non Cash Asset Disposals - - - (642) (642)
Reclassification of Accrued Lease Exit Costs 383 - 383 — 383
Accrued Restructuring as of December 31, 2002 $ 4554 $ 70 $4624 § 48 § 4,672
Restructuring Related Charges and Impairments 1,249 589 1,838 413 2,251
Restructuring Payments (8,094) (652) (8,746) 51 (8,797)
Sublease Income and Proceeds from the Sale of Fixed Assets 1,832 — 1,832 165 1,997
Non Cash Asset Disposals and Deferred Rent Write-Off 489 — 489 (575) (86)
Accrued Restructuring as of December 31, 2003 : $§ 30 s 7 §__37 5 - 537

7. Income taxes

For income tax purposes, the Company has available federal net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $119,000 and
research and development credit carry-forwards of $151 at December 31, 2003. The net operating loss and research and development
credit carry-forwards expire in 2011 through 2023 if not previously utilized. The utilization of these carry-forwards may be subject to
limitations based on past and future changes in ownership of the Company pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 382. Future tax
benefits have not been recognized in the financial statements, as their utilization is considered uncertain based on the weight of

available information.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax
assets (liabilities) are as follows:

December 31,
2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carry-forwards $ 45,134 § 39,791
Restructuring related costs : 20 2,109
Research and development credit carry-forwards. 196 146
Accrued vacation and other current liabilities. 843 1,355
Accounts receivable allowance 12 33
Total deferred tax assets 46,205 43,434
Valuation allowance (46,205) _ (43.434)
Total net deferred income taxes g — 3 —
8. Long-term liabilities
Long-term liabilities consist of the following:
December 31,
2003 2002
Deferred rent $— $ 510
— 510
Less: Current portion = —
S— 3510

9. Stockholders’ equity

The Company is authorized to issue two classes of stock designated as common and preferred. As of December 31, 2003, the total
number of shares that the Company was authorized to issue was 105,000 shares, of which 100,000 were common stock and 5,000
were preferred stock. On August 6, 2003 the Company announced a cash distribution to stockholders of $1.50 per share, payable on
September 2, 2003 to stockholders of record as of August 18, 2003. On September 2, 2003, the Company distributed $42.2 miilion to
the common stockholders that was reflected as a reduction to additional paid in capital.

Stock option plans

In April 2000, the Company’s board of directors adopted the 2000 Stock Plan (the “2000 Plan™), which provides for the issuance
of nonqualified stock options to employees who are not officers. The options allow the holder to purchase shares of the Company’s
common stock at fair market value on the date of the grant. During fiscal year 2002, no options were granted under the 2000 Plan. The
total number of options available for future grants under the 2000 Plan was 447 at December 31, 2003. Stock options granted under
the 2000 Plan typically vest over four years and generally expire ten years from the date of grant.

In February 1999, the Company’s board of directors adopted the 1999 Equity Incentive Plan (the “1999 Plan”), which provides for
the issuance of both incentive and nonqualified stock options. The options allow the holder to purchase shares of the Company’s
common stock at fair market value on the date of the grant. For options granted to holders of more than 10% of the outstanding
common stock, the option price at the date of the grant must be at least equal to 110% of the fair market value of the stock. During
fiscal year 2003, 1,000 options were granted under the 1999 Plan. Each year, beginning January 1, 2000 and ending January 1, 2002,
the number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the 1999 Plan will, in accordance with the terms of the 1999 Plan,
be increased automatically by the lesser of 5% of the total number of common shares then outstanding or 1,500 shares. Accordingly,
the number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the 1999 Plan increased by 0 and 1,356 shares in 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The total number of options available for future grants under the 1999 Plan was 2,524 at December 31, 2002. Stock
options granted under the 1999 Plan typically vest over four years and generally expire ten years from the date of grant.
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In February 1999, the Company’s board of directors adopted the 1999 Non-Employee Director Option Plan (the “1999 Non-
Employee Plan”) under which nonqualified stock options are granted to non-employee directors of the Company. The 1999 Non-
Employee Plan was amended and restated in April 2001. Under the 1999 Non-Employee Plan, 60, 195, and 30 options were granted in
fiscal year 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. As of December 31, 2003, 0 options were available for future grant under the 1999
Non-Employee Plan. Stock options granted under the 1999 Non-Employee Plan to a director upon his or her initial election or
appointment typically become exercisable over a two-year period after issuance and expire ten years from the date of grant. Stock
options granted under the 1999 Non-Employee Plan to a director at each annual meeting of the Company’s stockholders typically are
immediately exercisable and expire ten years from the date of grant.

The Company’s 1996 stock option plan (the “1996 Plan”) provides for the issuance of both incentive and nonqualified stock
options to employees. The incentive options allow the holder to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at fair market value
" on the date of the grant, subject to certain repurchase rights held by the Company. For options granted to holders of more than 10% of
the outstanding common stock, the option price at the date of the grant must be at least equal to 110% of the fair market value of the
stock. Stock options granted under the 1996 Plan are immediately exercisable but are subject to certain discretionary repurchase rights
by the Company (all of which rights have expired with respect to options outstanding under the 1996 Plan), and generaily expire ten
years from the date of grant. Upon adoption of the 1999 Plan, the Company ceased granting options under the 1996 Plan.

Deferred compensation related to stock options granted below fair market value in 1999 and 1998 totaled $2,826. Such
compensation is considered deferred compensation and amortized over the four-year repurchase period of the common stock
underlying the related options. Related amortization of stock compensation expense was $0, $42 and $173 in fiscal years 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

Stock compensation expense related to accelerated vesting of stock options was $12 in 2002,

Stock compensation expense recorded in the functional expense categories within operating expenses in 2003, 2002 and 200!, was
allocated as follows:

2003 2002 _2001

Sales and marketing $— $243% 39
Research and development — 8 154
General and administrative — 10 37
Restructuring = _12 0

8= 5545230

As aresult of the September 2, 2003 cash distribution paid to stockholders discussed above, the Board approved an adjustment to
the exercise price of all of our outstanding options to take effect on the close of business on September 3, 2003. The adjustment was to
in no event reduce the exercise price of any options to less than $0.01 per share or increase the number of shares subject to such
options to a number exceeding the number of shares of common stock that are registered and available for issuance. in addition, no
adjustment was made to any options with exercise prices above $2.00 per share. As a result of the adjustment, 870 stock options with
an average exercise price of $1.51 were adjusted to 3,715 stock options with an average exercise price of $0.32. In accordance with
FIN 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation an interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25,” there was no
accounting consequence due to the changes made to the exercise price or the number of shares other than future potential dilution to
stockholders because the aggregate intrinsic value of each award immediately after the change was not greater than the aggregate
intrinsic value of the award immediately before the change and the ratio of the exercise price per share to the market value per share
was not reduced.
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A summary of activity of the Company’s stock option plans is presented below:

Years Ending December 31

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 2,757 $ 326 3,719 $ 497 3452 $ 14.16
Granted 61 1.63 275 1.37 2,846 1.40
9/3/03 pre adjustment options (870) 1.51 — — . — —
9/3/03 post adjustment options 3,715 0.32 — — — —
Exercised (801) 1.12 (136) 47 (115) 53
Cancelled (2.833) 1.54  (1,100) 891 (2.464) 13.74
Outstanding at end of year 2,020 3 183 2,157 $326 3719 $ 497

The following table summarizes information about fixed-price stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003:

ti tstandin Qptions Exercisable
Weighted-Average
Range Of Remaining Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Exercise Prices Shares Contractual Life Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
$0.22 — $0.25 835 7.65 $ 023 273 $ 023
$0.30 — $0.37 905 7.76 0.31 315 0.34
$2.88 — $50.00 289 6.10 11.19 259 11.97
Total 2.029 748 § 183 847 5 386

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In February 1999, the Company’s board of directors adopted the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan”). The initial
number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the Purchase Plan was 1,000. Each year, beginning January 1, 2000
and ending January 1, 2004, the number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the Purchase Plan was, in accordance
with the terms of the Purchase Plan, automatically increased by the lesser of 2% of the total number of common shares then
outstanding or 600 shares. The number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the Purchase Plan increased by 300 in
each of 2003, 2002 and 2001. The Company terminated the Purchase Plan effective October 27, 2003. During 2003, 2002 and 2001,
12, 68, and 146 shares, respectively, were issued under the Purchase Plan.

Stockholders’ rights plan

In June 2001, the Company entered into a Rights Agreement (the “Rights Agreement”), commonly known as a “poison pill.”
Under the Rights Agreement, stockholders of record on June 14, 2001 were distributed Rights (the “Rights”) to acquire one one-
thousandth of a share of the Company’s Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock™), at a rate of one Right
for each share of the Company’s common stock (the “Common Stock™) held by stockholders on such date. Each share of common
stock issued after the June 14th, 2001 record date has an attached Right. The Rights trade together with the Common Stock and
generally become exercisable on the tenth day after a person or group (i) acquires 15% of more of the outstanding Common Stock or
(ii) commences a tender offer or exchange offer that would result in such a person or group owning 15% or more of the Common
Stock. In the event that a person or group acquires 15% or more of the Common Stock (a “Stock Acquisition™), each Right not owned
by the 15% or more stockholder (the “Acquiring Person”) and its affiliates would become exercisable for, upon payment of the
exercise price of the Right (currently, $15), either Preferred Stock or Common Stock in an amount equal to the then current exercise
price of the Right divided by one half the then current market price of the Common Stock. Alternatively, in the event of certain
business combinations following a Stock Acquisition, each Right not owned by the Acquiring Person and its affiliates would become
exercisable for, upon payment of the exercise price of the Right, common stock of the Acquiring Person in an amount equal to the
then current exercise price of the Right divided by one half the market price of the Acquiring Person’s common stock. At any time
until ten days following a Stock Acquisition, the Rights are redeemable by the Company’s board of directors at a price of $.01 per
Right. The Rights have no voting privileges. The Rights will terminate upon the earlier of the date of their redemption or ten years
from the date of issuance.
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On December 22, 2003, the board of directors adopted an amendment to the Rights Agreement. The amendment provides, in
effect, that the rights issued under the Rights Agreement will not be separately distributed to the Company’s stockholders and become
exercisable solely as a result of the commencement of a tender offer or exchange offer for all outstanding shares of the Company’s
common stock. In addition, the amendment provides that the rights will not “flip-in”” and entitle a holder to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock at a discount upon consummation of such an offer that results in the bidder beneficially owning at least
85% of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock, excluding for purposes of determining the number of shares of
common stock outstanding those shares owned by directors who are also officers of the Company and shares owned by stock plans
sponsored by the Company in which Company employee participants do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares
of Company common stock held subject to such stock plan(s) will be tendered in a tender offer or exchange offer. Also, pursuant to
the amendment, the rights will not be triggered by a subsequent merger of the Company with such a bidder in which the Company’s
stockholders receive the same consideration as was paid or issued in the tender offer or exchange offer. The amendment was intended
to remove the Rights Agreement as an impediment to a bidder completing its offer and a subsequent merger, while also affording
protection to stockholders who did not tender their shares in the bidder’s first-step tender or exchange offer, if the holders of a
substantial majority of the Company’s stock elected to accept the bidder’s offer. The amendment also clarified that stockholders who
entered into voting agreements or understandings solely regarding voting on the plan of liquidation would not be deemed, for purposes
of the Rights Agreement, to beneficially own the shares owned by the other parties to such agreements or understandings. This aspect
of the amendment was intended to allow stockholders to freely consult with one another, form groups, and enter into agreements, with
respect to voting at the special meeting on the plan of liquidation, without triggering the rights under the Rights Agreement. However,
since the plan of liquidation did not receive the requisite stockholder vote required for approval, this aspect of the amendment is no
longer applicable.

10. Joint venture

In July 1999, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement under which the Company and three other companies formed
Net Perceptions Japan for the purpose of distributing the Company’s and other non-competing software products in Japan. Under the
agreement, the Company contributed capital of $394 for a 45% interest in the joint venture. The Company accounted for this joint
venture investment using the equity method of accounting, recorded its share of income or loss in the income statement and
correspondingly adjusted the carrying value of the investment. In 2000 and 1999, the Company recorded its 45% share of losses in Net
Perceptions Japan, which were $197 in each year, effectively reducing the Company’s original capital investment to zero. During
2002, Net Perceptions Japan was dissolved.

11. Commitments and contingencies

Operating leases

The Company has entered into operating lease commitments for its office space. In connection with the restructuring described in
Note 6, the Company has terminated all of its office leases with the exception of its San Francisco, CA location. The Company is
seeking to sublease this remaining excess space. However, the Company remains obligated under this lease agreement. Minimum
future lease payments due under the agreement is $89 at December 31, 2003. Under the terms of an existing sublease agreement, the
Company expects to receive payments of $59 in 2004. However, there is a risk that the subtenant may breach the terms of the sublease
agreement and the Company may not receive all of the expected payments.

Rent expense totaled $300, $720 and $1,709 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Contingencies

On November 2, 2001, Timothy J. Fox filed a purported class action lawsuit against the Company, FleetBoston Robertson
Stephens, Inc., the lead underwriter of the Company’s April 1999 initial public offering, several other underwriters who participated in
the initial public offering, Steven J. Snyder, the Company’s then president and chief executive officer, and Thomas M. Donnelly, the
Company’s then chief financial officer and currently its president and chief financial officer. The lawsuit was filed in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of New York and has been assigned to the judge who is also the pretrial coordinating judge for
substantially similar lawsuits involving more than 300 other issuers. An amended class action complaint, captioned In re Net
Perceptions, Inc. Initial Public Offering Securities Litigation, 01 Civ. 9675 (SAS), was filed on April 22, 2002, expanding the basis
for the action to include allegations relating to the Company’s March 2000 follow-on public offering in addition to those relating to its
initial public offering.
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The amended complaint generally alleges that the defendants violated federal securities laws by not disclosing certain actions
taken by the underwriter defendants in connection with the Company’s initial public offering and follow-on public offering. The
amended complaint alleges specifically that the underwriter defendants, with the Company’s direct participation and agreement and
without disclosure thereof, conspired to and did raise and inicrease their underwriters’ compensation and the market prices of the
Company’s common stock following its initial public offering and in its follow-on public offering by requiring their customers, in
exchange for receiving allocations of shares of the Company’s common stock sold in its initial public offering, to pay excessive
commissions on transactions in other securities, to purchase additional shares of the Company’s common stock in the initial public
offering aftermarket at pre-determined prices above the initial public offering price, and to purchase shares of the Company’s common
stock in its follow-on public offering. The amended complaint seeks unspecified monetary damages and certification of a plaintiff
class consisting of all persons who acquired the Company’s common stock between April 22, 1999 and December 6, 2000. The
plaintiffs have since agreed to dismiss the claims against Mr. Snyder and Mr. Donnelly without prejudice, in return for their agreement
to toll any statute of limitations applicable to those claims; and those claims have been dismissed without prejudice. On July 15, 2002,
all of the issuer defendants filed a joint motion to dismiss the plaintiffs’ claims in all of the related cases. On February 19, 2003, the
court ruled against the Company on this motion. :

A special committee of the Company’s board of directors has authorized the Company to negotiate a settlement of the pending
claims substantially consistent with a memorandum of understanding negotiated among class plaintiffs, issuer defendants and their
insurers. Any such settlement would be subject to approval by the court.

The Company believes that the allegations against it are without merit. However, the Company is unable to predict the outcome or
ultimate effect of this litigation.

On October 29, 2003, a purported class action lawsuit was filed against the Company, its current directors and unnamed
defendants in the District Court, Fourth Judicial District, of the State of Minnesota, County of Hennepin captioned Don Blakstad, on
Behalf of Himself and All others Similarly Situated, vs. Net Perceptions, Inc., John F. Kennedy, Ann L. Winblad, John T. Ried! and
Does 1-25, inclusive, File No. 03-17820. The complaint alleged, among other things, that deféndants breached their fiduciary duties of
loyalty, due care, independence, good faith and fair dealing and sought to enjoin the proposed liquidation of the Company and to
recover reasonable attorneys” and experts’ fees. On November 24, 2003, defendants filed a motion to dismiss the lawsuit, and by order
dated March 8, 2004, the court dismissed the complaint with prejudice. By letter dated March 9, 2004, the plaintiff requested the .
court’s permission to file a motion to reconsider the decision dismissing the complaint with prejudice. On March 18, 2004, the court
denied the plaintiff’s request.

12. 401(k) plan

The Company had a 401(k) employee retirement plan under which eligible employees could contribute up to 20% of their annual
compensation, subject to certain limitations. Employees vested immediately in their contributions and earnings thereon. The plan
allowed for, but did not require, the Company to match employee contributions. The Company did not make any such matching
contributions. The Company terminated this 401(k) employee retirement plan on September 30, 2003, effective upon the distribution
of all assets held by the plan to the plan participants.

13. Segment data

The Company views its operations and manages its business as one segment, the development and marketing of computer software
and related services. Factors used to identify the Company’s single operating segment include the organizational structure of the
Company and the financial information available for evaluation by the chief operating decision maker in making decisions about how
to allocate resources and assess performance. In addition, the Company does not allocate operating expenses to any segments, nor
does it allocate specific assets to any segments. Therefore, segment information is ldentlcal to the consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated statement of operations.

Sales to customers located outside of the United States totaled 11%, 14% and 20% of total revenues in 2003, 2002 and 2001
respectively. Intemational sales to customers in any one individual foreign country did not exceed 10% of total revenues in 2003, 2002
or 2001. Assets held at international locations did not exceed 10% of total assets at December 31, 2003 or 2002.
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14. Related Party Transaction

In December 2000, the Company entered into a full recourse secured promissory note and security agreement with an officer of the
Company. Under the terms of the agreement, up to $300 could be loaned to the officer prior to April 15, 2001 solely to pay federal
income tax owed by the officer in connection with the officer’s exercise in March 2000 of an option to purchase shares of the
Company’s stock. Amounts outstanding under the note bear interest at 8% per annum and are partially secured by 33,000 shares of the
Company’s stock held by the officer and pledged to the Company. On April 11, 2001, $258 was loaned to the officer to pay alternative
minimum tax relating to the option exercise under the terms of the note.

Principal and interest owed by the officer shall be forgiven if the officer’s employment is terminated other than voluntarily or for
cause, or if there is a change in control of the Company as defined in the agreement. Additionally, one -third of the original principal
and accrued interest will be forgiven for each year that the officer remains continuously employed by the Company subsequent to
April 2001. Otherwise, principal and accrued interest are payable by the officer in April 2004.

The principal balance of the loan is being amortized to expense ratably over the term of the agreement commencing in April 2001.
As of December 31, 2003, the balance of $21 is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets. As of April 1, 2004, the note
was completely forgiven in accordance with its terms.

15. Subsequent Events

On March 31, 2004, the Company entered into an amendment to the patent purchase agreement entered into on December 30,
2003 between the Company and Thalveg Data Flow LLC pursuant to which it received $1,800 for the sale of its patent portfolio. The
amendment removed the stockholder approval condition to closing, through the adoption of the plan of liquidation or otherwise. The
patent purchase agreement includes a royalty-free, non-exclusive license back to the Company. The license is transferable, subject to
certain restrictions applicable to the transferee relating to revenues that can be generated by products covered by the license.

On April 1, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with Tornago, Inc. (“Tornago™), a corporation formed by three non-
officer former employees, to fulfill e xisting prepaid customer support obligations in exchange for future cash payments of
approximately $60. This amount represents approximately 60% of the remaining prepaid deferred maintenance revenue amounts
under the existing end user contracts when measured from April 1, 2004. The Company will continue to recognize the deferred
revenue as earned and the $60 will be reflected as cost of revenue. Under the terms of the agreement, Tornago received a non-
transferable license to relevant intellectual property solely to provide support and consulting services to end users of our products. No
intellectual property of the Company was transferred under the agreement. Under the agreement, the Company will receive, for a
period of two years, a 15% royalty on any follow-on services sold by Tornago.

In connection with the agreement with Tornago, the Company terminated the employment of the remaining members of its

engineering staff, effective March 31, 2004, and will pay severance to these employees in accordance with existing agreements. As of
April 1, 2004, the Company has two employees, both of whom are executive officers.
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7 SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

NET PERCEPTIONS, INC.

By: /s/ Thomas M. Donnelly

Thomas M. Donnelly
President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: April 13, 2004

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities indicated on April 13, 2004.

_Signature Title
/s/ THOMAS M. DONNELLY President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Executive Officer and Principal
Thomas M. Donnelly Financial and Accounting Officer)
{s/ JOHUN T. REIDL Director
John T. Riedl
{s/ JOHN F. KENNEDY Director

John F. Kennedy

/s/ ANN L. WINBLAD
Ann L. Winblad Director




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1, Thomas M. Donnelly, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Net Perceptioné,' Inc.; -

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; :

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operatnons and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the

periods presented in this report;

4. Iam responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have: :

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under my supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to me by others within those entities, particularly during the penod in which this report is
being prepared,;

(b) [Paragraph omitted in accordance with SEC transition instructions];

(¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report my
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this

report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;
and;

5. Thave disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 13, 2004

/s/ Thomas M. Donnelly
Thomas M. Donnelly
President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Net Perceptions, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2003
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Thomas M. Donnelly, as Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Thomas M. Donnelly.
Name: Thomas M. Donnelly
Title:  President and Chief Financial Officer
Date:  April 13, 2004

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not be deemed filed by the
Company for purposes of § 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to liability under that section,
this certification shall not be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to
extent the Company specifically incorporates it by reference.
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